
 

 

 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

July 18, 2016 

7:00 PM 

Regular Meeting 

 

Historic Courtroom 

Courthouse Complex



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  July 18, 2016 

  Page 2 of 3 

 

 

This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their 

meeting and all items found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may 

also, in their absolute discretion, consider matters not shown on this agenda. 
 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting 

the Clerk to the Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 100. 

 

Please turn Cell Phone ringers off during the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

BOC - Regular Meeting 

July 18, 2016 

7:00 PM 

Historic Courtroom, Courthouse Complex 

 

 Welcome & Call to Order 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

 Commissioner Tom White 

ITEM 1. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

ITEM 2. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 3. Presentations (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 4. Old Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Camden Community Park Lighting Project Bids 

ITEM 5. Public Hearings 

A. Public Hearing - Ordinance No. 2016-06-03 Proposed Amendments to Code of Ordinances 

B. Public Hearing - Ordinance 2016-06-02 Rezoning Application Lindsey W. Hewitt 

ITEM 6. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Mixed Beverage Election 

ITEM 7. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  July 18, 2016 

  Page 3 of 3 

 

A. Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 

B. Tourism Development Authority 

C. Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee 

ITEM 8. Consent Agenda  

A. BOC Draft Minutes June 6Th, 2016 

B. BOC Draft Minutes June13th, 2016 

C. BOC Draft Minutes June20th, 2016 

D. BOC Draft Minutes July 5Th, 2016 

E. Refunds Over $100.00 

F. Refunds Over $100.00 

G. DMV Monthly Report 

H. Tax Collection Report - June 

I. Volunteer Applications 

ITEM 9. Commissioners' Report 

ITEM 10. County Manager's Report 

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting 

Reconvene Commissioners' Meeting 

ITEM 11. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

A. 2016-2017 Final State Budget Summary 

B. Register of Deeds Monthly Report 

C. NCACC Review of 2016 Short Session 

D. Resolution Opposing House Bill 763: an Act To protect North Carolina's Military Foot Print 

ITEM 12. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 13. Adjourn 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Old Business 

 

Item Number: 4.A 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Tim White, Parks & Recreation Director 

 Parks & Recreation 

 Prepared by: Tim White 

 
Item Title   Camden Community Park Lighting Project Bids 

 

Attachments: 2016 CCP Lighting project bids (Albritton, Torrence 

& Techline) (PDF) 

 

Summary:  We have received three bids to light additional fields at the community park. 

 

Recommendation:  Select one of these contractors. 

4.A

Packet Pg. 4



4.
A

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 5

Attachment: 2016 CCP Lighting project bids (Albritton, Torrence & Techline)  (1309 : Camden Community



4.
A

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 6

Attachment: 2016 CCP Lighting project bids (Albritton, Torrence & Techline)  (1309 : Camden Community



4.
A

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 7

Attachment: 2016 CCP Lighting project bids (Albritton, Torrence & Techline)  (1309 : Camden Community



4.
A

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 8

Attachment: 2016 CCP Lighting project bids (Albritton, Torrence & Techline)  (1309 : Camden Community



4.
A

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 9

Attachment: 2016 CCP Lighting project bids (Albritton, Torrence & Techline)  (1309 : Camden Community



4.
A

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
0

Attachment: 2016 CCP Lighting project bids (Albritton, Torrence & Techline)  (1309 : Camden Community



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 5.A 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Angela Wooten, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Angela Wooten 

 
Item Title   Public Hearing - Ordinance No. 2016-06-03 Proposed 

Amendments to Code of Ordinances 

 

Attachments: Ordinance 2016-06-03 Proposed Amendments (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

 

Open Space Subdivisions allows for lots as small as 20,000, 15,000, and 10,000 sf under certain 

condition with the availability of water and sewer with the preservation of 50% of the land as 

open space.  However, it does not allow for smaller setbacks and if you have a lot that is 100' 

wide and 200' (20,00) deep, current setbacks (50' front and 25' side, rear, and vehicular) would 

limit an owner to a dwelling width of only 50'.  Per County Attorney's letter (attached), since the 

ordinance allows for smaller lot sizes in exchange for larger open space it would seem that 

setbacks would be diminished as well. 

 

Proposed amendment went to the Planning Board on June 15, 2016 and after discussion with 

Planning staff, the Ordinance was recommended for approval on a 5-0 vote.  

 

Recommendation: 

 

After public hearing, recommend amending agenda for consideration.   

5.A

Packet Pg. 11



5.
A

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
2

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-03 Proposed Amendments  (1310 : Public Hearing - Ordinance No. 2016-



5.
A

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
3

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-03 Proposed Amendments  (1310 : Public Hearing - Ordinance No. 2016-



5.
A

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
4

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-03 Proposed Amendments  (1310 : Public Hearing - Ordinance No. 2016-



5.
A

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
5

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-03 Proposed Amendments  (1310 : Public Hearing - Ordinance No. 2016-



5.
A

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
6

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-03 Proposed Amendments  (1310 : Public Hearing - Ordinance No. 2016-



5.
A

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
7

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-03 Proposed Amendments  (1310 : Public Hearing - Ordinance No. 2016-



5.
A

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 1
8

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-03 Proposed Amendments  (1310 : Public Hearing - Ordinance No. 2016-



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 5.B 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Angela Wooten, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Angela Wooten 

 
Item Title   Public Hearing - Ordinance 2016-06-02 Rezoning Application 

Lindsey W. Hewitt 

 

Attachments: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning 

Hewitt (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

 

Mr. Lindsey Hewitt received permission from Steve Dail to apply to rezone one acre of 

his 26 acre parcel of land off Spence Lane in South Mills Township from General Use 

District (GUD) to Basic Residential (R3-1).  Staff presented the rezoning request to the 

Planning Board on June 15, 2016 with the applicant present and after discussion by all 

parties, Planning Board made the following motions: 

 

(1) Consistency Statement:  Motion was made that the requested zoning change was 

inconsistent with CAMA Land Use Plan as it was considered spot zoning which benefits 

the applicant only and is not part of an overall zoning plan that would benefit County as 

a whole.  Also it is inconsistent with Camden County's Comprehensive Plan as future 

land use maps has land designated as Rural Preservation with a minimum lot size of 5 

acres.  Motion passed on a 5-0 vote. 

 

(2) Recommendation:  Motion was made to recommend approval of rezoning 1 acre of 

26 acres from General Use District (GUD) to Basic Residential (R3-1).  Motion passed on 

a 4-1 vote. 

5.B

Packet Pg. 19



 
 

Recommendation: 

 

After public hearing, recommend amending agenda for consideration;  

 

1) Consistency or inconsistency statement with adopted plans (CAMA Land Use and 

Comprehensive Plan): 

 

2) Approval or denial of Ordinance 2016-06-02 

5.B

Packet Pg. 20



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
1

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
2

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
3

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
4

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
5

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
6

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
7

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
8

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 2
9

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
0

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
1

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
2

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
3

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
4

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
5

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
6

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
7

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
8

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 3
9

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
0

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
1

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
2

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
3

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
4

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
5

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
6

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
7

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
8

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



5.
B

.a

P
ac

ke
t 

P
g

. 4
9

Attachment: Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt  (1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.A 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Michael Brillhart, County Manager 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Angela Wooten 

 
Item Title   Mixed Beverage Election 

 

Attachments: CEDC (PDF) 

NCGS  Related to Sale of Mixed Drinks (DOCX) 

 

Summary: 

 

At its July 12th meeting, the Camden County Economic Development Commission 

discussed and approved a recommendation asking the Board of Commissioners to 

consider adopting a resolution calling for a "Mixed Beverage Election" referendum to be 

placed on the November 8, 2016 general election ballot. Election procedures adopted 

under North Carolina G.S. 18B-601 allows the Board of Commissioners to approve the 

placement of a "Mixed Beverage Election" on a general election ballot once formally 

approved by the Board through a resolution followed by submittal of a written request 

to the County Board of Elections. 

 

The purpose in presenting this referendum is to give the electorate of Camden County 

an opportunity to consider approving the sale of mixed beverage at applicable sit-down 

Restaurants and other acceptable venues as provided under North Carolina G.S. 8B-

1001(2). 

 

If approved by the Board of Commissioners, the ballot referendum for a "Mixed 

Beverage Election" would state the following proposition as follows: 

 

6.A

Packet Pg. 50



 
"To permit the sale of mixed beverages in hotels, restaurants, private clubs, community 

theatres, and convention centers". 

 

 ( ) FOR 

 ( ) AGAINST 

 

Recommendation: 

 

The Camden Economic Development Commission requests the Board of Commissioners 

discuss and consider a resolution at its August 1, 2016 meeting to call and hold a "Mixed 

Beverage Election" referendum on the November 8, 2016 State general election ballot 

for Camden County. 

6.A

Packet Pg. 51



The Camden County economic development initiative includes a target industries list designed to

capitalize on community assets with the overall objective being investment, employment and revenue

generation. Among the list of desirable businesses, the initiative has included the retail and food sectors

in order to respond to the underserved and growing market opportunity in the community. Market

demand indicates a strong interest in, along with the ability to support, a national brand grocery

operator. Additionally, there is adequate demand for a pharmacy, a small scale merchandise retailer

along with several restaurants.

As the County advances its interests in attracting investment and service opportunity from the food

sector, efforts have also fostered current and future development project possibilities. Contact with

convenience food operators, along with casual dining establishments, reinforces the desire on the part

of industry and the community to expand upon the mutually beneficial relationship. One such obstacle

however for the community has been the expressed desire on the part of the casual dining industry to

achieve service in the "liquor by the drink" category should an investment be a consideration. It is

generally assumed that the ability to enable liquor by the drink format would position Camden County

to a more serious consideration point when marketing to this business category.

6.A.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

E
D

C
  (

13
15

 :
 D

is
cu

ss
io

n
 M

ix
ed

 B
ev

er
ag

e 
E

le
ct

io
n

)



General Statute Excerpts Related to Allow Sale of Mixed Drinks 

 

18B-600.  Places eligible to hold alcoholic beverage elections. 

(a)        Kinds of Elections. - The following kinds of alcoholic beverage elections shall be permitted: 

(1)        Malt beverage; 

(2)        Unfortified wine; 

(3)        ABC store; and 

(4)        Mixed beverage. 

(b)        County Elections. - Any county may hold a malt beverage, unfortified wine, or ABC store 

election. A county may hold a mixed beverage election only if the county already operates at least one 

county ABC store or a county election on ABC stores is to be held at the same time as the mixed 

beverage election 

 

§ 18B-601.  Election procedure. 

(a)        Generally. - Except as otherwise provided in this section, an alcoholic beverage election shall 

be conducted in the same manner and under the same rules as a referendum under Chapter 163. 

(b)        How County Election Called. - A county alcoholic beverage election shall be conducted by 

the county board of elections. When a county is eligible to hold an election under G.S. 18B-600, the 

county board of elections shall hold the election upon receiving either: 

(1)        A written request for an election from the governing body of the county; or 

(2)        A petition requesting an election signed by at least thirty-five percent (35%) of the 

voters registered in the county at the time the petition was initiated. 

 

§ 18B-602.  Form of ballots 

(h)        Mixed Beverage Elections. - The ballot for a mixed beverage election shall state the 

proposition as follows: 

To permit the sale of mixed beverages in hotels, restaurants, private clubs, community theatres, and 

convention centers. 

[] FOR 

[] AGAINST 

 

18B-603.  Effect of alcoholic beverage elections on issuance of permits. 

(d)       Mixed Beverage Elections. - If a mixed beverage election is held under G.S. 18B-602(h) and 

the sale of mixed beverages is approved, the Commission may issue permits to qualified persons and 

establishments in the jurisdiction that held the election as follows: 

(1)        The Commission may issue mixed beverage permits. 

(2)        The Commission may issue on-premises malt beverage, unfortified wine, and 

fortified wine permits for establishments with mixed beverage permits, regardless of 

any other election or any local act concerning sales of those kinds of alcoholic 

beverages. 

(3)        The Commission may issue off-premises malt beverage permits to any establishment 

that meets the requirements under G.S. 18B-1001(2) in any township or incorporated 

municipality which has voted to permit the sale of mixed beverages, regardless of 

any other local act concerning sales of those kinds of alcoholic beverages. The 

Commission may also issue off-premises unfortified wine permits to any 

establishment that meets the requirements under G.S. 18B-1001(4) in any township 

6.A.b

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

C
G

S
  R

el
at

ed
 t

o
 S

al
e 

o
f 

M
ix

ed
 D

ri
n

ks
  (

13
15

 :
 D

is
cu

ss
io

n
 M

ix
ed

 B
ev

er
ag

e 
E

le
ct

io
n

)



or incorporated municipality which has voted to permit the sale of mixed beverages, 

regardless of any other local act concerning sales of those kinds of alcoholic 

beverages. 

(4)        The Commission may issue brown-bagging permits for private clubs and 

congressionally chartered veterans organizations but may no longer issue and may 

not renew brown-bagging permits for restaurants, hotels, and community theatres. A 

restaurant, hotel, or community theatre may not be issued a mixed beverage permit 

under subdivision (1) until it surrenders its brown-bagging permit. 

(5)        The Commission may continue to issue culinary permits for establishments that do 

not have mixed beverage permits. An establishment may not be issued a mixed 

beverage permit under subdivision (1) until it surrenders its culinary permit. 

 

§ 163-287.  Special elections; procedure for calling. 
(a)        Any county, municipality, or any special district shall have authority to call special elections as 

permitted by law. Prior to calling a special election, the governing body of the county, municipality, or 
special district shall adopt a resolution specifying the details of the election, and forthwith deliver the 
resolution to the local board of elections. The resolution shall call on the local board of elections to 
conduct the election described in the resolution and shall state the date on which the special election is 
to be conducted. In setting the date, counties, municipalities, and special districts are encouraged to set 
a date that will result in the highest possible voter turnout. However, the special election may be held 
only as follows: 

(1)        At the same time as any other State or county general election. 
(2)        At the same time as the primary election in any even-numbered year. 
(3)        At the same time as any other election requiring all the precincts in the county to be 

open. 
(4)        At the same time as a municipal general election, if the special election is within the 

jurisdiction of the municipality only. 
(b)        Legal notice of the special election shall be published no less than 45 days prior to the special 

election. The local board of elections shall be responsible for publishing the legal notice. The notice shall 
state the date and time of the special election, the issue to be submitted to the voters, and the precincts 
in which the election will be held. This subsection shall not apply to bond elections. 

(c)        The last sentence of subsection (a) of this section shall not apply to any special election 
related to the public health or safety, including a vacancy in the office of sheriff or a bond referendum 
for financing of health and sanitation systems, if the governing body adopts a resolution stating the 
need for the special election at a time different from any other State, county, or municipal general 
election or the primary in any even-numbered year. 

(d)       The last sentence of subsection (a) of this section shall not apply to municipal incorporation 
or recall elections pursuant to local act of the General Assembly. 

(e)        The last sentence of subsection (a) of this section shall not apply to municipal elections to fill 
vacancies in office pursuant to local act of the General Assembly where more than six months remain in 
the term of office, and if less than six months remain in the office, the governing board may fill the 
vacancy for the remainder of the unexpired term notwithstanding any provision of a local act of the 
General Assembly. 

(f)        This section shall not impact the authority of the courts or the State Board to order a new 
election at a time set by the courts or State Board under this Chapter.  (1971, c. 835, s. 1; 1973, c. 793, s. 

86; 1993 (Reg. Sess., 1994), c. 762, s. 65; 2011-31, s. 7; 2013-381, s. 10.1; 2014-111, s. 17.5(a).) 
 

6.A.b

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

C
G

S
  R

el
at

ed
 t

o
 S

al
e 

o
f 

M
ix

ed
 D

ri
n

ks
  (

13
15

 :
 D

is
cu

ss
io

n
 M

ix
ed

 B
ev

er
ag

e 
E

le
ct

io
n

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.A 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Tim White, Parks & Recreation Director 

 Parks & Recreation 

 Prepared by: Tim White 

 
Item Title   Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 

 

Attachments: Parks n Rec Members (PDF) 

Parks_Vol_Ward (PDF) 

Parks_Vol_Friend (PDF) 

Parks n Rec BYLAWS (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

 

Mrs. Karen Friend and Mr. Keith Ward would like to fill current vacancies we have on the Parks 

and Recreation Advisory Board. 

 

The Camden County Parks and Recreation bylaws state that this is a 6 member advisory board 

and that each member shall serve a term of three years.   

 

The Parks and Recreation advisory council has submitted the (2) attached volunteer applications 

for Mr. Keith Ward and Ms, Karen Friend. 

 

Recommendation: 

 

Motion to appoint Mr. Keith Ward and Ms. Karen Friend to serve the Parks and Recreation 

Advisory Board for a term of three (3) years expiring 7/17/2019. 

7.A

Packet Pg. 55



NAMEOFBOAR^^ Imembership
Steve Needham

^^jTATUS APPOINTED TERM Iexpiratio^

Parks & Rec Board Shiloh Alex Leary (R) 12/15/2014 3 Years 12/14/2017

Parks & Rec Board BOC TOM WHITE (ex) 12/15/2014 2 Years 12/12/2016

Parks & Rec Board Courthouse Dearl Neal (A) 9/8/2015 3 Years 9/7/2018

Parks & Rec Board BOE Mark Harnly (ex) 6/1/2016

Parks & Rec Board Courthouse Scott Jones (V)

Parks & Rec Board South Mills (V)

Parks & Rec Board South Mills (V)

7.A.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
ks

 n
 R

ec
 M

em
b

er
s 

 (
13

08
 :

 P
ar

ks
 a

n
d

 R
ec

re
at

io
n

 A
d

vi
so

ry
 B

o
ar

d
)



Application for Citizen Service -Volunteer Form

Ifyouare a citizen of Camden County and would like to serve on one ofthe County'sboards or commissions, please

complete this applicationand return it to the CountyManager's Office, 330 East HWY 158, and mail to: P.O. Box190,

Camden, North Carolina 27921 or e-mail mrenshaw©.camdencountvnc.qov.

Name: Keith Ward

Mailing Address: POBox 309, Camden NC 27921

Township you live in: Courthouse

Telephone (home): 252-338-5360 (business): 757-679-8144

Email address: keithward@embarqmail.com

Are you a registered voter? (r'es^7 ^°

Have youever been convicted of a felony? Yes ( No

Please identify any talent, interest, skill, experience or educational preparation which might be helpful to a boardor
commission: Camden based youth sports program administrator.

Boards orCommissions upon which you are interested in serving: Parksand Recreation Advisory Board

Asa member ofa Board or Commission, you will be expected to attend at least75% ofthe meetings. Please notethe

by-laws of some Boards and Commissions limit the number of terms served. This application is a notification of your
interest to serve on a Board orCommission tobeconsidered by the Board ofCommissioners when a vacancy
occurs. Thanks for your interest in Camden County Government

Signature: *~-t?**^::::ZZ?Ls--^*^. Date: 13 July 2016

Camden County, NC January 2016

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
ks

_V
o

l_
W

ar
d

  (
13

08
 :

 P
ar

ks
 a

n
d

 R
ec

re
at

io
n

 A
d

vi
so

ry
 B

o
ar

d
)



Application for Citizen Service -Volunteer Form

If you are acitizen of Camden County and would like to serve on one of the County's boards or commissions, please
complete this application and return it to the County Manager's Office. 330 East HWY 158. and mail to: P.O. Box 190.

Camden, North Carolina27921 or e-mail mrenshaw®camdencountvnc gov.

Name: Karen Friend

Mailing Address: PQ BOX 193 Camden NC 27921

Township you live in: Camden

Telephone (home): 252-336-9910 (business): 252-330-3126

Email address. friendkm(5)tcomlD.com

Are you a registered voter? / Yes No

Haveyou ever been convicted ofa felony? Yes (3-
Please identify any talent, interest, skill, experience or educational preparation which might be helpful to a board or
commission: .—. . .

Boards or Commissions upon whichyou are interested in serving:

Parks & Rec Advisory Board

As a member of a Board or Commission, you will be expected to attend atleast 75% of the meetings. Please note the
by-laws of some Boards and Commissions limit the number of terms served. This application is anotification of your
interest to serve on a Board orCommission tobeconsidered by the Board of Commissioners when a vacancy
occurs. Thanks foryour interest in Camden County Govepifnent

Signature: [,.-,^M/^~\ ^ Date: 7'/3'J»6

cru™^-.3

Camden County, NC January 2016

7.A.c

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
ks

_V
o

l_
F

ri
en

d
  (

13
08

 :
 P

ar
ks

 a
n

d
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
 A

d
vi

so
ry

 B
o

ar
d

)



County of Camden
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board

BYLAWS

I. NAME

The name of this organization shall be the County of Camden Parks and Recreation Advisory
Board, as stipulated by the County Board of Commissioners on July 3, 2006.

II. PURPOSES

A. The Advisory Board shall make recommendations relative to planning and
conducting the parks and recreation programs in the County of Camden.

B. The Advisory Board shall make recommendations on policies and other items of
business as requested by the Director of Parks and Recreation, the County Manager
and/or Board of Commissioners.

C. The Advisory Board will review the Department's Operating and Capital Budget as
presented by the Parks and Recreation Director prior to presentation to the County
Manager.

III. BOARD MEMBERSHIP

-

A. The six (6) member Advisory Board, with every reasonable effort made to appoint
two (2) members from each township, shall be appointed by the County Board of
Commissioners. One (1) additional member, for a total of seven (7), will be a
Camden County Commissioner appointed annually by the Chairman of the Board of
Commissioners. The members shall serve a term of three (3) years. No member shall
serve for more than two (2) consecutive terms. Persons appointed to fill less than
one-half of the term of vacancy may serve two (2) additional consecutive terms.

B. The entire membership of the Advisory Board shall consider it a civic duty to attend
all meetings and shall endeavor to make fair and just decisions to the benefit of the
County of Camden, in accordance with the objectives of the Parks and Recreation
Department, and shall aid the Department in interpreting the objectives of the
Department's program to the public.

C. In regard to attendance, failure of a member of the Advisory Board to attend a
majority of the regularly scheduled meetings of the Agency held within any calendar
year shall automatically constitute cause for removal provided, however, that the
same requirements of notice and opportunity for hearing shall apply.

7.A.d

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
ks

 n
 R

ec
 B

Y
L

A
W

S
  (

13
08

 :
 P

ar
ks

 a
n

d
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
 A

d
vi

so
ry

 B
o

ar
d

)



D. Any member of the Advisory Board may be removed for cause by formal vote of the
Vj Board of Commissioners, provided that such member first be given a written

statement of the causes and an opportunity to be heard thereon.

E. The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board will include an ex-officio member,
appointed by the Camden Superintendent of Schools to serve as a liaison
representative.

IV. BOARD OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES

A. The officers of the Advisory Board shall be a Chairperson and a Vice Chairperson.

B. The Chairperson of the Advisory Board shall preside at all meetings of the Board and
shall perform such other duties as may be determined by the Advisory Board. The
Chairperson shall be an Ex-Officio member of all committees.

C. The Vice Chairperson shall assume the duties of the Chairperson in his or her
absence.

D. The Advisory Board's Secretary/Clerk shall be a member of the Parks and Recreation
staff..

E. The Director of Parks and Recreation shall notify members and the office of the
^w' County Manager ofall meetings; shall keep minutes ofall meetings ofthe Advisory

Board; shall conduct such correspondence as the Board may direct; shall forward all
minutes of all meetings to the Board's members, the County Manager and the Board
of Commissioners.

V. ELECTION AND TERMS OF BOARD OFFICERS

A. The officers shall be elected by a majority vote of the quorum present and serve a
term of one year.

B. The annual election of officers will be held the regular meeting in the month of
December, and those officers elected will take office in the month of January.

C. In the event the Chairperson resignsor for any reason is not able to completehis or
her term of office, the Vice Chairperson shall assume the office of Chairperson and
serve for the remainder of the term. In the event the Vice Chairperson resigns,
assumes the office of Chairperson,or for anyother reason is not able to complete his
or her term of office,the Advisory Boardshallelect a successorViceChairperson to
serve for the remainder of the term.

^

7.A.d

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
ks

 n
 R

ec
 B

Y
L

A
W

S
  (

13
08

 :
 P

ar
ks

 a
n

d
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
 A

d
vi

so
ry

 B
o

ar
d

)



VI. ADVISORY BOARD MEETINGS

A. A regular meeting of the Advisory Board shall be held monthly or as otherwise
needed.

B. Special meetings may be held at any time or place at the call of the Chairperson or
upon the request of three members of the Advisory Board.

C. Official action shall be taken by the Advisory Board only when a quorum is present,
with a quorum consisting of a majority of the voting membership of the Board.

D. Any vote by the Advisory Board on any issue shall have no force or effect unless, or
until, taken in open session in a manner in which the decision of each member can be
publicly observed.

E. Any motion made by a member of the Advisory Board in regard to any matter must
receive a second from another member in order for any vote to be taken on such
motion. When a motion is made and receives no second, the motion shall be deemed
dismissed from consideration.

F. Every member of the Advisory Board present at a meeting of the Board shall vote on
^^ each matter placed before the Advisory Board for vote unless the matter involves

consideration of that member's own official conduct, or where that member's
financial interests are involved (irregardless of amount), or where that member is
otherwise prohibited by law from voting on the matter. Should a member have such
an interest or be so prohibitedby law, he or she shall specificallycite the conflicting
interestor the legalprohibition at the timehis or her voteis required therefore asking
permission to abstain from voting.

G. All votes have to be taken by a show of hands with names recorded by secretary.

H. The board memberscan request citizens to provide information to specificquestions.

I. All meetingsshall be open to the publicand advertisedin advance in a newspaperof
local distribution and on the county website.

J. The Order of Business of the Advisory Board shall be as follows:

1. Call to Order and Welcome

2. Invocation

3. Pledge of Allegiance
4. Roll Call

ii 5. Approval of Minutes
6. Report of Special Committees

7.A.d

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
ks

 n
 R

ec
 B

Y
L

A
W

S
  (

13
08

 :
 P

ar
ks

 a
n

d
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
 A

d
vi

so
ry

 B
o

ar
d

)



-

_

_

7. Hearing of Citizens
8. Unfinished Business (Parks & Rec Director)
9. Unfinished Business (Chairman)
10. Director's Business

11. New Business (Members)

12. Adjournment

VII. COMMITTEES

A. The Chairperson may appoint such committees, standing or special, as may be
deemed appropriate.

B. The Chairperson and the Director of Parks and Recreation shall be Ex-Officio
members of all committees and, as such, shall be notified of all meetings.

Adopted this the 3rd day of May, 20JO.

ATTEST:

fva J/ Gurgarfrfs, NCCCC
ClerkHo the Board

K

Philip S. Faisdn, Chairman J
Camden County Board of Commissioners

7.A.d

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
ks

 n
 R

ec
 B

Y
L

A
W

S
  (

13
08

 :
 P

ar
ks

 a
n

d
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
 A

d
vi

so
ry

 B
o

ar
d

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.B 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Donna Stewart, Visitor Center Director 

 Dismal Swamp Welcome Center 

 Prepared by: Angela Wooten 

 
Item Title   Tourism Development Authority 

 

Attachments: TDA  Members (PDF) 

TDA_Vol_Cherrix (PDF) 

Resolution No, 2004-10-02.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

 

The Authority shall consist of nine (9) members: eight (8) voting members and one (1) ex officio 

non-voting member. The ex officio non-voting member shall be the county's Finance Officer. 

 

The Chair will be appointed by the Board of Commissioners. The Board of Commissioners shall 

fill vacancies on the Authority as needed. The member's terms of office shall be two (2) years. 

The members of the Authority shall serve without pay except for luncheon meetings.  

 

The TDA has submitted the attached volunteer application from Mr. Doug Cherrix to fill the 

vacancy. 

 

Recommendation: 

 

Motion to appoint Mr. Doug Cherrix to serve the Tourism Development Authority for a term of 

(2) years expiring 7/17/2018. 

7.B

Packet Pg. 63



Camden County

Tourism Development Authority

LnameofboarImemb^ APPOINTED ^_™ii^_^EXPIR^IO^I

TDA Charlotte Underwood (R) 7/7/2014 2 Years 7/7/2016

IDA Janet Inge (R) 7/7/2014 2 Years 7/7/2016

TDA Beverly Bengies (A) 11/3/2014 2 Years 11/30/2016

TDA Finance Officer (ex)

TDA Georgia Lamb (R) 1/5/2015 2 Years 1/4/2017

TDA Adam Carver (A) 10/6/2014 2 Years 10/31/2016

TDA TOM WHITE (ELECT) 12/15/2014 4 Years 11/30/2018

TDA (V)

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

  M
em

b
er

s 
 (

13
11

 :
 T

o
u

ri
sm

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

)



Application for Citizen Service -Volunteer Form

If you are a citizen of Camden County and would like to serve on one of the County's boards or commissions, please

complete this application and return it to the County Manager's Office, 330 East HWY 158, and mail to: P.O. Box 190,

Camden, North Carolina 27921 or e-mail info©camdenoountvnc. oov.

Name: Doug Chenix

Mailing Address: 1033C Ryland Rd., Tyner NC 27980

Township you live in: N/A * Iam nota resident of Camden County, Iam representing ACADEMI

Telephone (home): (252) 562-4641 (business): (252)435-1723

Email address: Doug.Cherrix@constellis.com

Are you a registered voter? ]Yes| No

Have you ever been convicted of a felony? Yes INo

Please identify any talent, interest, skill, experience or educational preparation which might be helpful to a board or

commission: Director of Facility Services at ACADEMI Training Center. Licensed General Contrator.

Boards or Commissions upon which you are interested in serving: Tourism Development Authority

As a member of a Board or Commission, you will be expected to attend at least 75% of the meetings. Please note the

by-laws of some Boards and Commissions limit the number of terms served. This application is a notification of your

interest to serve on a Board or Commission to be considered by the Board of Commissioners when a vacancy

occurs. Thante for your interest in Camden County Governmentnbs for your interest in Camden Count

Signature: VUfUAfMJJU^ \Jb^SiS\AAs Date: 03.

Camden County, NC May 2016

7.B.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

  M
em

b
er

s 
 (

13
11

 :
 T

o
u

ri
sm

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

)



Application for Citizen Service -Volunteer Form

If you are a citizen of Camden County and would like to serve on one of the County's boards or commissions, please

complete this application and return it to the County Manager's Office, 330 East HWY 158, and mail to: P.O. Box 190,

Camden, North Carolina 27921 or e-mail info@camdencountvnc.gov.

Name: Doug Cherrix

Mailing Address: 1033C Ryland Rd., TynerNC27980

Township you live in: N/A *Iam nota residentof CamdenCounty, I am representing ACADEMI

Telephone (home): (252) 562-4641 (business): (252)435-1723

Email address: Doug.Cherrix@constellis.com

Are you a registered voter? | Yes | No

Have you ever been convicted ofa felony? Yes lNoJ

Please identifyany talent, interest, skill,experience or educational preparation which might be helpful to a board or

commission: Director of Facility Services at ACADEMI Training Center. Licensed General Contrator.

Boards orCommissions upon which you areinterested in serving: Tourism Development Authority

As a member of a Board or Commission, you will be expected to attend at least 75% of the meetings. Please note the

by-laws of some Boards and Commissions limit the number of terms served. This application is a notificationof your

interest to serve on a Board or Commission to be considered by the Board of Commissioners when a vacancy

occurs. Thanks for your interest in Camden County Government

Signature: \\JfLUfMAfr \JWSMAs Date M

Camden County, NC May2016

7.B.b

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

D
A

_V
o

l_
C

h
er

ri
x 

 (
13

11
 :

 T
o

u
ri

sm
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
)



7.B.c

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 N
o

, 2
00

4-
10

-0
2.

p
d

f 
 (

13
11

 :
 T

o
u

ri
sm

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.C 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Angela Wooten, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Angela Wooten 

 
Item Title   Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee 

 

Attachments: cac (PDF) 

cac members (PDF) 

CAMDEN COUNTY CAC BY-LAWS (PDF) 

NC GS 131D-30-32 (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

 

Staff has received the attached letter of resignation from Ms. Dana Rabon Smith.  Ms. 

Rabon states that due to unforeseen circumstances she is unable to commit to her recent 

appointment to the Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee. 

 

N.C.G.S.  131D-31.  Adult care home community advisory committees. 

 

(e)  Vacancies. - Any vacancy shall be filled by appointment of a person for a one-year 

term.  If this vacancy is in a position filled by an appointee nominated by the chief 

administrators of adult care homes within the county, then the county commissioners 

shall fill the vacancy from persons nominated by a majority of the chief administrators.  

If the adult care home administrators fail to make a nomination by registered mail 

within 45 days after written notification has been sent to them requesting a nomination, 

this appointment may be made without nominations.  If the county commissioners fail to 

fill a vacancy, the vacancy may be filled by the Assistant Secretary for Aging, 

Department of Health and Human Services no sooner than 45 days after the 

commissioners have been notified of the appointment or vacancy. 

7.C

Packet Pg. 68



 
 

Attached is a Press Release provided by Ms. Brandi Jordan, Regional Long-Term Care 

Ombudsman 

 

 

Recommendation: 

 

Direct staff to 

 Send written notification to the adult care home administrators requesting a 

nomination for appointment. 

 Advertise the vacancy on the website using the attached press release 

7.C

Packet Pg. 69



Angela Wootenigela

From: Dana Rabon <gracainc@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2016 4:32 PM
To: Angela Wooten; Brandi Jordan
Subject: CAC

Hello ladies,

I hope you both had a great 4th and your summer is going well.

Unfortunately, I am going to be unable to commit to the position as a CAC member for Camden County at this
time. I have had some unforeseen circumstances arise that are not only consuming my time but will prevent me
from being able to commit to the important tasks as a member the committee. I am so very sorry for this and
hate to put you all in a bind.

I appreciate the opportunity and again, I apologize for any inconvenience or undue burden this may cause.

With kindest regards,

Dana Rabon-Smith, RPh
Executive Director

Waterbrooke Assisted Living
252-331-2149

252-331-1271 (fax)

7.C.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 c

ac
  (

13
12

 :
 A

d
u

lt
 C

ar
e 

H
o

m
e 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

A
d

vi
so

ry
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e)



Angela Wooten

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:

Attachments:

Brandi Jordan <bjordan@accog.org >
Thursday, July 14, 2016 10:04 AM
awooten@camdencountync.gov
Camden County CAC
CAC Press Release for Volunteer Position Vacancy.docx; CAMDEN AC CAC.doc

Hi Angela-

Just wanted to touch base with you. I know that the Camden CAC committee was full until recently with the resignation

of Dana Smith. Ms. Mansfield will be attending her initial training in August and will then be able to participate in her
CAC duties. I've attached the updated list of your CAC members FYI.

I've also attached a sample CAC press release, which may help in your recruitment. Please let me know if you have any
questions!

Brandi

BrandiJordan, MSW
Regional Long-Term Care Ombudsman
Albemarle Commission

hioidan@accoR.oiK

252.426.5753x225(0)
252.426.8482 (V)

41
•Like us on

facebook

7.C.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 c

ac
  (

13
12

 :
 A

d
u

lt
 C

ar
e 

H
o

m
e 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

A
d

vi
so

ry
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e)



CAMDEN COUNTY ADULT CARE HOME COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE

MEMBERS

Shana Trafton

214 Scotland Rd.

Camden, NC 27921

(252)338-3753

Jasmine Wilson

PO Box 190

Camden, NC 27921

(252) 335-2569

Ruth White

309 Holland Drive

Camden, NC 27921

(252) 335-4657

Clarann Mansfield

831 Hwy 343 North

Camden, NC 27921

(252)771-2400

VACANCY (1)

POSITION

Secretary

Chair

Member

Member-in-Training

REGIONAL LONG TERM CARE OMBUDSMAN

ALBEMARLE COMMISSION AREA AGENCY ON AGING

Brandi Jordan, MSW

P.O. Box 646, 512 S. Church Street

Hertford, NC 27944

Phone: (252) 426-5753 Ext. 225

CAMDEN COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES

ADULT PROTECTIVE SERVICES

PHONE (252) 331-4787

Updated 07/12/2016

TERM EXPIRATION

08/03/2017

11/1/2018

11/01/2018

03/20/2017

7.C.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 c

ac
  (

13
12

 :
 A

d
u

lt
 C

ar
e 

H
o

m
e 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

A
d

vi
so

ry
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e)



VACANCY: Seeking to fill positions for the County Community Advisory Committee from 8-
24 hours per quarter - Major Responsibility: To uphold the intent of the NC Resident Bill of Rights.
Applicant must reside in County and cannot live in, work at, or have a financial interest in the
long-term care facilities that he/she will serve. You may also not have an immediate family member in the
facilities that you serve. To serve, you must be 18, live in the county and be willing to give your time. The
estimate of time spent performing required duties includes attendance at meetings, conducting both
official and friendly visits to the facilities, and other activities to benefit long term care residents.

For more information, (252) 426-5753 Ext. 225 or visit http://www.albemarlecommission.com

7.C.a

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 c

ac
  (

13
12

 :
 A

d
u

lt
 C

ar
e 

H
o

m
e 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

A
d

vi
so

ry
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e)



Camden County

Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee

^AMEO^OAR^^ IMEMBERSHIP
JASMINE WHITE ^^v^^^H

APPOINTED TERM EXPIRATIO^

CAC RUTH WHITE (R) 11/2/2015 2 Years 11/1/2017

CAC SHANA TRAFTON (R) 8/4/2014 3 Years 8/3/2017

CAC Clarann Mansfield (A) 3/21/2016 1 Year 3/20/2017

CAC Dana Smith (R) 3/21/2016 1 Year 3/20/2017

7.C.b

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 c

ac
 m

em
b

er
s 

 (
13

12
 :

 A
d

u
lt

 C
ar

e 
H

o
m

e 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e)



7.C.c

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

A
M

D
E

N
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

A
C

 B
Y

-L
A

W
S

  (
13

12
 :

 A
d

u
lt

 C
ar

e 
H

o
m

e 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e)



7.C.c

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

A
M

D
E

N
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

A
C

 B
Y

-L
A

W
S

  (
13

12
 :

 A
d

u
lt

 C
ar

e 
H

o
m

e 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e)



7.C.c

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

A
M

D
E

N
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

A
C

 B
Y

-L
A

W
S

  (
13

12
 :

 A
d

u
lt

 C
ar

e 
H

o
m

e 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e)



7.C.c

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

A
M

D
E

N
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 C

A
C

 B
Y

-L
A

W
S

  (
13

12
 :

 A
d

u
lt

 C
ar

e 
H

o
m

e 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
A

d
vi

so
ry

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e)



7.C.d

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

C
 G

S
 1

31
D

-3
0-

32
  (

13
12

 :
 A

d
u

lt
 C

ar
e 

H
o

m
e 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

A
d

vi
so

ry
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e)



7.C.d

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

C
 G

S
 1

31
D

-3
0-

32
  (

13
12

 :
 A

d
u

lt
 C

ar
e 

H
o

m
e 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

A
d

vi
so

ry
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e)



7.C.d

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

C
 G

S
 1

31
D

-3
0-

32
  (

13
12

 :
 A

d
u

lt
 C

ar
e 

H
o

m
e 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

A
d

vi
so

ry
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e)



7.C.d

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

C
 G

S
 1

31
D

-3
0-

32
  (

13
12

 :
 A

d
u

lt
 C

ar
e 

H
o

m
e 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

A
d

vi
so

ry
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e)



7.C.d

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 N

C
 G

S
 1

31
D

-3
0-

32
  (

13
12

 :
 A

d
u

lt
 C

ar
e 

H
o

m
e 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

A
d

vi
so

ry
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.A 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Angela Wooten, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Angela Wooten 

 
Item Title   BOC Draft Minutes June 6Th, 2016 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary:  

 

June 6th, 2016 BOC Minutes - Draft 

 

 

 

Recommendation: 

8.A

Packet Pg. 84



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.B 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Angela Wooten, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Angela Wooten 

 
Item Title   BOC Draft Minutes June13th, 2016 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary:  

 

June 13th, 2016 BOC Minutes - Draft 

 

 

 

Recommendation: 

8.B

Packet Pg. 85



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.C 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Angela Wooten, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Angela Wooten 

 
Item Title   BOC Draft Minutes June20th, 2016 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary:  

 

June 20th, 2016 BOC Minutes - Draft 

 

 

 

Recommendation: 

8.C

Packet Pg. 86



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.D 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Angela Wooten, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Angela Wooten 

 
Item Title   BOC Draft Minutes July 5Th, 2016 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary:  

 

July 5th, 2016 BOC Minutes - Draft 

 

 

 

Recommendation: 

8.D

Packet Pg. 87



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.E 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Terri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Terri Smith 

 
Item Title   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: ca5e248f-e07e-469c-999b-1b907273ce79.pdf (PDF) 

Refunds over 100 (PDF) 

Refunds over 100 -2 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Refunds Over $100.00 for June, 2016 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

8.E

Packet Pg. 88



8.E
.a

P
acket P

g
. 89

Attachment: ca5e248f-e07e-469c-999b-1b907273ce79.pdf  (1304 : Refunds Over $100.00)



NAME

Christopher Michael Foy

Ann Marie Loucks

Drachma, Inc.

Harry Spence c/o Mils Walston

Joey Shane Russell

Abner Wayne Staples

REASON

TYPE

NO.

$184.00

Turned in plates - for Refund
Pick-Up/19151
VTS-30278725

$115.56

Released - never lived in Camden

Pick-Up/19153
V-13010-00

$2,932.63

Legal Fees
Pick-Up/19141
R-92399-15

$190.44

Parcek created due to (2) 2014 survey billed
with parent parcel.

Pick-Up/19140
R-94485-15

$178.81

Turned in plates-for Refund
Pick-Up/19138
VTS-26067936

$208.41

Adjustment - Farm Use correction
Pick-Up/19159
R-93815-15

8.E.b

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
o

ve
r 

10
0 

 (
13

04
 :

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

O
ve

r 
$1

00
.0

0)



NAME

Christopher Michael Foy

Ann Marie Loucks

Drachma, Inc.

Harry Spence c/o Mils Walston

Joey Shane Russell

Abner Wayne Staples

REASON

TYPE

NO.

$184.00

Turned in plates - for Refund
Pick-Up/19151
VTS-30278725

$115.56

Released - never lived in Camden

Pick-Up/19153
V-13010-00

$2,932.63

Legal Fees
Pick-Up/19141
R-92399-15

$190.44

Parcek created due to (2) 2014 survey billed
with parent parcel.

Pick-Up/19140
R-94485-15

$178.81

Turned in plates-for Refund
Pick-Up/19138
VTS-26067936

$208.41

Adjustment - Farm Use correction
Pick-Up/19159
R-93815-15

8.E.c

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
o

ve
r 

10
0 

-2
  (

13
04

 :
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.F 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Terri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Terri Smith 

 
Item Title   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: 20160711081246000.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Recommendation:    Review and Approve 

8.F

Packet Pg. 92



8.F.a

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
60

71
10

81
24

60
00

.p
d

f 
 (

13
07

 :
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.G 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Terri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Terri Smith 

 
Item Title   DMV Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: 20160708082126243.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary:   DMV Monthly Report September Renewals Due 10/15/2016 

 

Recommendation:    Review and Approve 

8.G

Packet Pg. 94



8.G.a

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
60

70
80

82
12

62
43

.p
d

f 
 (

13
05

 :
 D

M
V

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.H 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Angela Wooten 

 
Item Title   Tax Collection Report - June 

 

Attachments: Tax Collection Report - June (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

 

Recommendation: 

8.H

Packet Pg. 96



Tax Collection Report
June 2016

Day Amount Amount Name of Account Deposits

1 1,226.00 1,226.00
2 4,419.591 4,419.59
3 5,599.47 5,599.47

6 2,873.27 2,873.27,

7 6,532.69 6,532.69
8 2,141.31 2,141.31
9 1,386.57 S2.19- Refund 1,386.57

10 1.886.57 S5.44 - Refund 1.886.57

13 4,042.00 4,042.00
14 269.86 269.86

15 1,766.82 1,766.82
16 3,680.53' 3,680.53
17 4.877.85 4,877.85
20 753.49 SO.52 -vRefund

27,791.39 $1.50-Refund 27.791.39
22 7,055.75 7,055.75
23 546.13 546.13

24 8,244.00 8,244.00
27 505.00 505.00

28 8,694.89 8,694.89
4,438.95 4,438.95

29 9,510.38 9,510.38
30 2,812.44 2,812.44

757.94

2,338.74 2,338.74

$114,151.63 $0.00 $112,640.20

$114,151.63 $114,151.63

-$9.65 Refund
$0.00 Over
$0.00 Shortage

-$0.01 Adjustment Rounding-Detail vs.Scroll

$114,141.97

Subr$r?ted bv: >P\Co<^ ^Ch\£ku^ST\
Approved by: = ^===

Date: Q- S- I L>

Date:

8.H.a

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
 -

 J
u

n
e 

 (
13

16
 :

 T
ax

 C
o

lle
ct

io
n

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 J

u
n

e)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.I 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Angela Wooten, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Angela Wooten 

 
Item Title   Volunteer Applications 

 

Attachments: Trillium_Vol_McLain (PDF) 

Senior_Vol_McLain (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

 

Recommendation: 

8.I

Packet Pg. 98



*
Application for Citizen Service -Volunteer Form

Ifyou are a citizen of Camden County and would like to serve on one of the County's boards or commissions, please

complete this application and return it to the County Manager's Office, 330 East HWY 158, and mail to: P.O. Box 190,

Camden, North Carolina 27921 or e-mail info@camdencountvnc.gov.

Name: "r\ r»o ;cL*^{ iA/ioL^;^

Mailing Address: I^ ^ c <' ^ ^ ^>~^ r<a*a*T CL dL u^Jy^cJ &&- oZ T*/g /

Township you live in: C— ^ <^\ Jv<^ i y

Telephone (home): 3 5 "D ~ ^ 5T^ c^- (business): <^o '7 £~.utt

Email address: ^^ <2_ K L cst.'.'pi^t G-^> <^* k-<-£*-•' .C_ o c^
3

Are you a registered voter? ^§^ No

Have you ever been convicted of a felony? Yes ,kNo.

Please identify any talent, interest, skill, experience or educational preparation which might be helpful to a board or

commission:

Boards or Commissions upon which you are interested in serving:

~T~C y, \ I,'u.*^ \\--*s.er. ';&*->.•<. ( n^^', S^u*" f- Loop r

As a member of a Board or Commission, you will be expected to attend at least 75% of the meetings. Please note the

by-laws of some Boards and Commissions limit the number of terms served. This application is a notification of your

interest to serve on a Board or Commission to be considered by the Board of Commissioners when a vacancy

occurs. Thanks for your interest in Camden County Government

Signature: <z-^^y^^^^-^^^C^ Date: ~7 - ( ^~ '<-

Camden County, NC January 2016

8.I.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ri
lli

u
m

_V
o

l_
M

cL
ai

n
  (

13
17

 :
 V

o
lu

n
te

er
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

s)



Application for Citizen Service -Volunteer Form

Ifyou are a citizen of Camden County and would like to serve on one of the County's boards or commissions, please

complete this application and return it to the County Manager's Office, 330 East HWY 158, and mail to: P.O. Box 190,

Camden, North Carolina 27921 or e-mail info@camdencountvnc.aov.

Name: T^. VM: eJUy^uJl IM <l~L<^ :o

Mailing Address: '^f I >i^<=l S4- CL ol M^^y^^ PCL gCTj^

Township you live in: C /fr_ v^&^slJ

Telephone (home): "2 ^> ^ 33S^- S^S"2- (business): ^5~7L&(f'££ *?P

Email address: (T^d~\<-i-.c±> Z>u^ t^> <R-k^^. I.^>*-y. (gp <R-k^-€*-A.CLesu^

Are you a registered voter? O^s) No

Have you ever been convicted ofa felony? Yes v/No")

Please identify any talent, interest, skill, experience or educational preparation which might be helpful to a board or

commission:

Vol-ha- <T*-*- O-^rvi' «-^s

Boards or Commissions upon whicri you are interested in serving:

<y-e.u>'\C>tf- <?_«-f-;-2.«Et?<:

As a member of a Board or Commission, you will be expected to attend at least 75% of the meetings. Please note the

by-laws of some Boards and Commissions limit the number of terms served. This application is a notification of your

interest to serve on a Board or Commission to be considered by the Board of Commissioners when a vacancy

occurs. Thanks for your interest in Camden County Government

Signature:-^S^^^g^ Date: 7^'^

ansHSSEaa-arsaraca:

Camden County, NC May 2016

8.I.b

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r_
V

o
l_

M
cL

ai
n

  (
13

17
 :

 V
o

lu
n

te
er

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.A 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Angela Wooten, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Angela Wooten 

 
Item Title   2016-2017 Final State Budget Summary 

 

Attachments: finalbudgetreport (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

 

Recommendation: 

11.A

Packet Pg. 101



 
 

1 
 

2016‐2017 FINAL STATE BUDGET SUMMARY 
July 6, 2016 

 

The NC General Assembly finalized the 2016‐2017 state budget on the last day of the legislative session, 

also the first day of the new fiscal year. Counties will benefit from the inclusion of $40 million in 

additional funds for behavioral health initiatives, including recommendations from the Governor’s Task 

Force on Mental Health and Substance Abuse. Strong advocacy work by NCACC and member counties, 

including a letter of support from the association board, contributed to these recurring and non‐

recurring funds being included in the final budget. 

 

The budget contains noticeably more earmarks than in recent history, not surprising in an election year 

with several tight statewide races. State employees receive a 1.5 percent salary increase and a .5 

percent bonus, and the legislature set aside $28 million for one‐time merit bonuses (including a $12 

million shift of funds from a market adjustment reserve fund). While state retirees received an increase, 

local government retirees did not. The Emergency Response and Disaster Relief Fund (rainy day fund) 

grew by $10 million. 

 

 

Finance Provisions 

 

The NC General Assembly again made significant changes to the state’s tax and revenue structure. They 

increased the standard deduction for personal income tax across all filing statuses, and shifted the basis 

for determining what portion of a multi‐state company’s income is taxable in North Carolina. The shift in 

corporate taxation, over time, will focus the decision more on where customers are located than where 

the good or service is produced, or where the company has facilities. The bill also gives retailers a “good 

faith” exception to compliance with taxing the services, and expands special sales tax treatment to 

recyclers, metal fabricators and ports. 

 

The budget also makes the following finance changes that directly impact local revenues: 

 Eliminates the $17.6 million state contribution to the local sales tax distribution, which was a 

part of last year’s sales tax distribution compromise and was designed to hold all counties 

harmless for the first year of the new plan; rationale for repeal was that the expanded base 

brought in more revenue than anticipated 

 Expands the types of retailers that must levy the recently enacted sales tax on repair, 

maintenance and installation services 

 Repeals the sales tax on automotive service contracts and limits the tax on the repair and 

maintenance of airplanes and boats 

 Extends by five years a narrowly drawn property tax exclusion related to damaged land 

previously used for commerce or industry donated to a nonprofit 

 

   

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

in
al

b
u

d
g

et
re

p
o

rt
  (

13
14

 :
 2

01
6-

20
17

 F
in

al
 S

ta
te

 B
u

d
g

et
 S

u
m

m
ar

y)



 
 

2 
 

Health and Human Services 

 

The General Assembly’s adjustments to the Health and Human Services budget increase funding for 

mental health programs, fund programs and block grants tied to child welfare services, and increase 

funds for NCFAST development and implementation including childcare, child services and Medicaid 

Eligibility Requirement components. The adjusted HHS budget is just more than $5 billion. This is less 

than the enacted biennial budget because of the Medicaid rebase, which reflects a reduction of more 

than $310 million due to less‐than‐forecasted enrollment, utilization and pricing of Medicaid. 

   

• Provides $10 million recurring and $10 million non‐recurring in reserves to implement 

recommendations from the Governor’s Mental Health and Substance Abuse Task Force; Prior to 

spending these funds, DHHS must obtain approval from OSBM on an implementation plan and 

report the plan to the Joint Legislative Oversight Committee on HHS and the Fiscal Research 

Division 

• Directs $18 million from the sale of the Dorothea Dix property for new or converted behavioral 

health beds in rural areas with the highest need, with $2 million from the sale going to 

competitive grants for two new crisis centers for children 

• Appropriates $500,000 for an opioid use disorder treatment pilot program 

• Directs DHHS to develop a plan to improve efficiency and effectiveness of mental health services, 

and directs the General Assembly to create subcommittees on Behavioral Health Services within 

the two interim oversight committees on HHS and Medicaid 

• Appropriates $300,000 to create seven new positions in DHHS to help counties improve Medicaid 

timeliness through data analysis, guidance and performance standard development 

• Implements recommendations from a legislative report on Medicaid eligibility timeliness; 

including a process for temporary assumption of Medicaid processing by DHHS if a county fails to 

meet timeliness goals as part of a 12‐18 month joint corrective action plan 

• Funds almost $8.6 million to implement the requirements from a federal Program Improvement 

Plan to bring the state into compliance with national child welfare standards; directs the funds to 

child welfare and child protective services programs to meet findings of a 2014‐15 child 

protective services evaluation of county performance, caseload sizes, administrative structure, 

adequacy of funding, social worker turnover, monitoring and oversight 

• Directs more than $3.4 million from block grants to state and county child welfare initiatives, 

training and program improvements; provides more than $700,000 to create 15 new positions in 

DHHS to provide training and oversight to counties in the development of child welfare services 

improvement plans 

• Increases Work First County Block Grants by $2 million and Social Services Block Grants for 

counties by $107,259, redirects TANF block grants for the Pre‐K and Child Care Subsidy programs 

in lieu of appropriations and reduces LIEAP block grants for county DSS Administration by 

$352,637 

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

in
al

b
u

d
g

et
re

p
o

rt
  (

13
14

 :
 2

01
6-

20
17

 F
in

al
 S

ta
te

 B
u

d
g

et
 S

u
m

m
ar

y)



 
 

3 
 

• Appropriates just more than $1.3 million recurring for 260 additional children in the Child Care 

Subsidy program; directs a study of how childcare subsidy rates are set while increasing the 

childcare subsidy market rate for certain facilities serving ages 3‐5 in tier 1 and 2 counties 

• Appropriates $14.8 million to local health departments to offset reduced Medicaid 

reimbursement rates on the delivery of direct patient services 

• As part of a temporary $34 per patient increase in payments, appropriates $3.75 million non‐

recurring for facilities that serve recipients of State‐County Special Assistance funds; directs 

counties to fund 50% of the costs to cover these patients and sunsets the entire provision no 

later than June 30, 2017 

 

 

Public Education 

 

The House’s budget spends $12.7 billion on Education, representing 57% of the General Fund Budget.   

 

K‐12: 

 Funds salary and experience‐based step increases for teachers to provide an average salary 

increase of 4.7%; increases the expected average salary for teachers from all fund sources to 

more than $50,150 in FY 2016‐17 

 Appropriates $1 million recurring and $100,000 non‐recurring for a 3‐year pilot program to 

develop a model compensation structure that would allow classroom teachers to take on 

advanced teaching roles 

 Funds a Teacher Assistants Tuition Reimbursement program to provide tuition assistance grants 

of up to $4,500 annually for 25 teacher assistants working in Anson, Franklin, Moore, Richmond, 

and Scotland Counties who are pursuing a college degree that will result in teacher licensure 

 Appropriates an additional $46.8 million to account for a net ADM increase of 5,875 students 

 Continues the fixed appropriation of $100 million in lottery proceeds for school capital needs 

 Budgets $57 million recurring in additional lottery receipts to fully support non‐instructional 

support personnel, for a total of $372 million recurring in lottery funds for this allotment 

 Directs legislative staff to contract for an independent assessment of school construction needs 

and to determine which LEAs have the highest facility needs in relation to their capacity to raise 

revenue 

 Modifies small school system funds eligibility to provide that an LEA shall not become ineligible 

if either of the following would otherwise have made the LEA ineligible:  the higher of the first 

two months (1) total projected ADM for the current year or (2) total prior year ADM 

 Extends use of the motor vehicle registration late fee as a dedicated revenue source for driver 

education beyond fiscal 2017‐18 

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

in
al

b
u

d
g

et
re

p
o

rt
  (

13
14

 :
 2

01
6-

20
17

 F
in

al
 S

ta
te

 B
u

d
g

et
 S

u
m

m
ar

y)



 
 

4 
 

 Reduces the percentage of teachers at a particular charter school that must reside within North 

Carolina to 80%; changes criteria that are used in measuring virtual charter school’s withdrawal 

rate 

 Modifies the overall school performance grade scale for the next three fiscal years from a 10‐

point to a 15‐point scale 

 Changes the funded class size allotment ratio for grades K‐3 

Community Colleges: 

 Provides $25,000 non‐recurring to create a continuing education program in community 

colleges for finance officers in local governments and public authorities 

 Appropriates funds for 3 positions and related software licenses to administer the Connect NC 

Bond program within the Community College System Office; the Community College System will 

receive $350 million through the Connect NC Bond for facility construction and renovation  

 Provides that the Career‐ and College‐Ready Graduates program, which introduces college 
developmental mathematics, reading and English curriculums in the high school senior year, 
shall be fully implemented in all high schools statewide beginning with the 2018‐19 school year.  

 

 

Justice and Public Safety 

 

Department of Public Safety  

 Repeals the statute that transfers 5% of the Statewide Misdemeanant Confinement Fund 

annually to the NC Sheriffs Association and directs only $1 million to the Sheriffs Association for 

its administration of the program 

 Requires DPS to report annually on the status of programs funded through the Treatment for 

Effective Community Supervision Program; the report must include information regarding 

recidivism reduction services, community intervention centers, transitional and temporary 

housing, local reentry councils, and intensive outpatient services 

 Provides $507,784 non‐recurring for the construction and development of first‐generation 

School Risk Management Plans for public schools in accordance with G.S.115C‐105.49 

 Appropriates $8 million for the purchase of a new plane for the SBI Airwing 

 Funds Operation Medicine Drop, an SBI program that organizes events for citizens to bring 

unused medications to a central location for safe disposal 

Justice 

 Funds equipment and utilities to operate the new Western Crime Lab in Edneyville, scheduled to 

be completed in February 2017 

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

in
al

b
u

d
g

et
re

p
o

rt
  (

13
14

 :
 2

01
6-

20
17

 F
in

al
 S

ta
te

 B
u

d
g

et
 S

u
m

m
ar

y)



 
 

5 
 

 Provides additional funds for equipment needs at State Crime Lab facilities in Raleigh and 

Greensboro 

 Appropriates an additional $2 million non‐recurring for the State Crime Lab to outsource 

toxicology and DNA cases 

 Directs the Justice Academy to develop an online training course on the use of social media and 

make it available to law enforcement officers in the state 

Judicial  

 Provides funds to the Administrative Office of the Courts to digitize mental health records to 

facilitate clerks' compliance with the requirement to transmit judicial determinations as to 

certain disqualifiers for firearms permitting to the National Instant Criminal Background Check 

System (NICS) within 48 hours 

 Restores assistant district attorney positions in District 9A (Caswell and Person), District 15B 

(Orange and Chatham), and District 20B (Union), which were eliminated as part of AOC's 

voluntary reduction in force program in FY 2011‐ 12 

 Provides one additional district court judge in Districts 19A (Cabarrus) and 27B (Cleveland) 

 

Environmental Quality 

 

• Expands the use of funds for aquatic weed control projects to projects outside of lakes 

• Appropriates almost $18.8 million non‐recurring in additional funds for water and wastewater 

infrastructure grants; designates some Division of Water Infrastructure funds to specific projects 

in counties and cities across the state 

• Delays Jordan and Falls lakes nutrient management rules until at least 2019 and 2022 

respectively; directs the Environmental Management Commission to review nutrient 

management rules in the lakes; provides $500,000 annually to UNC‐Chapel Hill to study 

strategies in the lakes during delay of rules 

• Moves up the sunset of the Mercury Switch Removal program from December 31, 2017 to June 

30, 2017; some funds from this program flow to counties to help with mercury recycling and 

management programs 

• Restores $16.2 million in recurring funding from motor fuels tax for the Commercial Leaking 

Underground Petroleum Storage Tank Program 

• Appropriates almost $6.3 million to DEQ for the state share of federal Water Resources 

Development Projects; local funds matching the state and federal share will total $5.4 million 

• Directs DEQ to consolidate data and studies on storm damage reduction and beach nourishment 

projects; directs the tax offices in Brunswick, New Hanover, Pender, Onslow, Carteret, Hyde, 

Dare, and Currituck counties to provide information from their records on property located 

inside and outside these counties and outside of the state 

 

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

in
al

b
u

d
g

et
re

p
o

rt
  (

13
14

 :
 2

01
6-

20
17

 F
in

al
 S

ta
te

 B
u

d
g

et
 S

u
m

m
ar

y)



 
 

6 
 

Agriculture and Consumer Services 

 

 Provides $1 million to the Agriculture and Farmland Preservation fund for military buffers  

 Reduces funding for the Animal Shelter Support Program by $100,000  

 Removes the requirement that a non‐profit under contract with a county to operate a 

spay/neuter clinic contract with a local veterinarian; expands the definition of “low‐income 

person” eligible for pet spay/neuter assistance to include those who qualify for various public 

assistance programs 

 Adds a position in the department’s Animal Welfare Section to provide voluntary consultation to 

public and private animal shelters 

 Transfers remaining balance of swine waste fund to Department’s marketing division and  

appropriates $500,000 in nonrecurring funding for marketing of North Carolina agricultural 

products abroad  

 Provides $250,000 in nonrecurring funds to make fresh fruits and vegetables available in food‐

deserts across the state; retailers receiving the funds must accept Supplemental Nutrition 

Assistance Program and Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and 

Children benefits 

 

 

Commerce 

 Allows the department to use $1.25 million in deobligated CDBG funds for the State Broadband 

Plan and requires the department to report on its broadband initiatives and use of funds by 

February 1, 2017 

 Provides $250,000 each from the Rural Economic Development Division for broadband projects 

in Cumberland and Stokes counties 

 Would (?) transfer almost $4.5 million in deobligated CDBG funds to the Dept. of Environmental 

Quality for water and sewer projects for public schools 

 

Transportation 

 

 Limits ferry tolls to four routes and prohibits the Board of Transportation from tolling any other 

route 

 Establishes a reserve account for capital improvements to the ferry system; appropriates $4 

million recurring and $6 million non‐recurring to the account 

 Increases recurring funding by $2 million to the Rural Operating Assistance Program for public 

transit 

 Increases the threshold for which construction projects are subject to bidding requirements 

from $2.5 million to $5 million 

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

in
al

b
u

d
g

et
re

p
o

rt
  (

13
14

 :
 2

01
6-

20
17

 F
in

al
 S

ta
te

 B
u

d
g

et
 S

u
m

m
ar

y)



 
 

7 
 

 Shifts the formula for the unpaved secondary road program to allocate 50 percent of the funds 

by statewide prioritization and 50 percent evenly among the 14 highway divisions 

 Repeals the $500,000 cap on transit projects from last year’s budget; limits total state funding of 

a light rail project to 10 percent of the total project cost 

 Makes permanent 44 time‐limited positions in the Tag and Tax program paid for by local 

government fees to administer the program 

 Authorizes $7.5 million non‐recurring funds for dredging approaches to state ports 

 

 

Miscellaneous 

 Adds three types of cancers to the list of diseases for which a firefighter is presumed to have 

been killed for purposes of death benefits 

 $500,000 for the Dept. of Information Technology to create a cybersecurity apprenticeship 

program for disabled veterans in the state with a competitive process to select five applicants in 

year one, with the option to expand the program beyond the current fiscal year 

 Provides funds to make the NC Building Code fully online and searchable 

11.A.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

in
al

b
u

d
g

et
re

p
o

rt
  (

13
14

 :
 2

01
6-

20
17

 F
in

al
 S

ta
te

 B
u

d
g

et
 S

u
m

m
ar

y)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.B 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Angela Wooten, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Angela Wooten 

 
Item Title   Register of Deeds Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: RoD Monthly Report - June 2016 (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

 

Register of Deeds Monthly Report - June 

 

Recommendation: 

11.B

Packet Pg. 109



11.B
.a

P
acket P

g
. 110

Attachment: RoD Monthly Report - June 2016  (1318 : Register of Deeds Monthly Report)



11.B
.a

P
acket P

g
. 111

Attachment: RoD Monthly Report - June 2016  (1318 : Register of Deeds Monthly Report)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.C 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Angela Wooten, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Angela Wooten 

 
Item Title   NCACC Review of 2016 Short Session 

 

Attachments: finalreport2016_201607081408497156 (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

 

Recommendation: 

11.C

Packet Pg. 112



1 
 

 

The  2016  Short  Session  saw  multiple  benefits  to  counties  in  the  form  of  budget  appropriations, 

legislation  passed,  and  legislation  that  did  not  cross  the  finish  line.  The  NC  General  Assembly’s 

Adjournment on the first day of fiscal year was earlier than usual, though the session convened about 

three  weeks  sooner  than  is  typical.  Rancor  between  chambers  throughout  final  day  –  when  deals 

between House and Senate leadership began to fall apart – led to an abrupt ending soon after the final 

budget vote, leaving many bills unexpectedly dead. 

NCACC made progress on  the county goal  to  repeal  statutory authority  for  local  school boards  to sue 

county  commissioners.  The  final  budget  includes  large  appropriations  to  behavioral  health  initiatives, 

including recommendations from the Governor’s Task Force on Mental Health and Substance Abuse, to 

help counties. (Click here for our final budget report.) Many pieces of legislation that tried to limit local 

government authority were stopped or their negative impacts were vastly reduced.  

SHORT SESSION PRIORITY GOALS 

Counties directed NCACC to focus on three of its biennial goals during the short session. 

Seek  legislation  to  repeal  the  statutory  authority  under  NCGS  115C‐431(c)  that  allows  local  school 

boards to file suit against a county board of commissioners over county appropriations for education. 

Last session, the House rejected a bill that would have achieved one of the counties’ priority goals for 

the biennium‐‐to repeal the statutory provision explicitly allowing local school boards to file suit against 

county  boards of  commissioners  to dispute  the  sufficiency of  education appropriations. H726  (School 

Bds. Can’t Sue County) passed a House Judiciary committee, but was voted down on the House floor by 

a vote of 66‐52.  Much later in the session, the Senate resurrected the issue by amending H561 (School 

System Auth. Re Legal Proceedings) to impose a five‐year moratorium on school board lawsuits against 

county commissioners. The House did not concur in the Senate amendment to H561, and a conference 

committee of House and Senate members did not convene before the 2015 session adjourned, which 

left H561 eligible for consideration this session.  

After  months  of  discussions  between  the  NCACC  advocacy  team,  key  members  of  the  conference 

committee and other stakeholders,  the conferees  for H561 settled on a conference report  that would 

require  a  thorough  examination  of  the  issue.  The  final  bill  does  not  include  a moratorium  on  school 

board  lawsuits,  but  directs  legislative  staff  to  conduct  a  comprehensive  study  of  the  school  funding 

dispute resolution process set forth in G.S. 115C‐431.  

During  the  study,  the  Division will  examine  a  number  of  factors,  including  how  often mediation  and 

litigation have been used to resolve education funding disputes, the impact the current process has had 

on  relationships  between  the  boards,  and  the  cost  to  taxpayers.  The  Division  will  then  make 

11.C.a

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

in
al

re
p

o
rt

20
16

_2
01

60
70

81
40

84
97

15
6 

 (
13

19
 :

 N
C

A
C

C
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
20

16
 S

h
o

rt
 S

es
si

o
n

)



2 
 

recommendations for alternative ways to resolve these disputes or modifications to the current process 

and  report  to  the  Joint  Legislative Oversight  Committee  on  Program Evaluation  no  later  than May  1, 

2017. Both the House and Senate adopted the conference report for H561. NCACC extends its profound 

thanks  to all members of  the H561 conference committee and all  sponsors of H726  for  their work on 

and support of this issue.  

Despite  reluctance  to do  so on a  statewide basis,  the General Assembly approved  two  local bills  that 

impose  a  moratorium  on  school  board  lawsuits  against  county  commissioners.  S881  (Union  County 

School  Funding)  institutes  a  one‐year  suspension  on  lawsuits  filed  by  the Union  County  school  board 

against the board of county commissioners on the basis of education funding. The bill provides that the 

two boards shall meet periodically during  the  interim to  facilitate “a greater mutual understanding of 

immediate  and  long‐term  budgetary  issues  and  constraints  affecting  public  schools  and  county 

governments.” The boards are directed to assess school capital needs and develop a joint five‐year plan 

for  meeting  those  needs.  The  agreed‐upon  plan  is  to  be  considered  in  preparing  and  approving  the 

budget ordinance for the 2017‐18 fiscal year.  

S382 (Revision of SB 612) amends the law that provided for the merger and consolidation of the school 

administrative  units  in  Nash  County  and  the  City  of  Rocky  Mount.  The  bill  sets  forth  new  funding 

requirements for Nash‐Rocky Mount Schools (NRMS) and establishes a 10‐year moratorium on litigation 

related to local funding for that school administrative unit. The bill further provides that if Edgecombe 

County or the City of Rocky Mount fail to provide the funding as required, the portion of NRMS located 

in Edgecombe County will transfer to the Edgecombe School Administrative Unit.   

Seek legislation to authorize local option revenue sources already given to any other jurisdiction.  

NCACC sought to address this goal by expanding the use of the Article 43 transit tax to all counties for 

education purposes, and by providing the option for a county to seek up to ½ cent through Article 46 

(currently limited to ¼ cent). Language to this effect was included in two bills during the 2015 session, 

H518 sponsored by former NCACC President Rep. Howard Hunter among others, and in a House rewrite 

of S605, which passed the House but was not considered by the Senate. NCACC advocates and members 

made multiple efforts to revive the legislation through various channels, but the Senate was unwilling to 

pursue the change in an election year.  

Support  legislation,  regulations  and  funding  that would  preserve  local  option  and  authority where 

needed to deploy community broadband systems and ensure community access to critical broadband 

services. 

Promising  work  early  in  session  to  authorize  counties  to  install  and  lease  digital  infrastructure  in 

partnership  with  private  providers  ran  into  opposition  late  in  session.  At  the  beginning  of  the  short 

session, NCACC reached agreement with industry on language, found a relevant legislative vehicle while 

receiving agreement from the bill’s original sponsors, and identified champions in the House and Senate. 

Ultimately, however, continued concerns in the Senate about the municipal level playing field law from 

2011, about counties getting  into private enterprise, and about providing grants  to  large corporations 

stalled our efforts as session came to a close. There was some progress on this goal in the budget with 

11.C.a

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

in
al

re
p

o
rt

20
16

_2
01

60
70

81
40

84
97

15
6 

 (
13

19
 :

 N
C

A
C

C
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
20

16
 S

h
o

rt
 S

es
si

o
n

)



3 
 

$1.25 million  to  help with  the  State  Broadband  Plan  as well  as  $500,000  in  total  for  two  broadband 

initiatives  in  Cumberland  and  Stokes  counties.  Furthermore,  legislators  are  noticing  this  issue  and 

discussing it more and more as a necessary tool for counties to attract industry and educate students. 

MAJOR INITIATIVES LEFT UNDONE AT THE END OF SESSION 

Many bills with serious policy implications did not become law, but counties should expect to see some 

of  them reappear next year. While  several  received a great deal of publicity, others progressed more 

quietly. 

The Senate modified and passed H100  (Local Government  Immigration Compliance) and H3  (Omnibus 

Constitutional Amendments), but  the House chose not  to consider either of  these bills.  The proposed 

constitutional  amendments  would  lower  the  state  income  tax  cap  to  5½  percent,  almost  half  of  its 

current  cap of 10 percent;  require a  specified amount of  the annual  state budget  to be added  to  the 

“rainy day fund” and require a two‐thirds vote of both the House and Senate to spend those funds in an 

emergency; put the statutory language specifying when a government can condemn property under its 

eminent domain authority into the state constitution; and affirmatively state that people have the right 

to hunt, fish and harvest wildlife in the state.  

H100  would  penalize  counties  by  withholding  school  construction  funds  if  the  county  or  county  law 

enforcement  agency  fails  to  comply  with  state  immigration  laws  related  to  E‐verify,  sanctuary 

ordinances and acceptable forms of identification. It would require the Attorney General to investigate 

all  complaints  alleging  that  a  county,  city  or  local  law  enforcement  agency  is  in  violation  of  a  state 

immigration law. 

The  bill  states  that  if  the  Attorney  General  determines  that  a  complaint  is  verified,  all  affected  local 

governments  shall  be  ineligible  to  receive  distributions  under  the  Public  School  Building  Capital  Fund 

and  the  Powell  Bill  funds  for  the  first  year  following  the  date  of  noncompliance.  An  "affected  local 

government" is defined as either a county or a city that fails to comply, or a county or a city whose law 

enforcement  agency  is  not  in  compliance.  The  bill  further  provides  that  if  the  violation  is  not  cured 

within 60 days of the Attorney General’s determination, the affected local governments will lose these 

sources of funding for an additional year.  

H100 raises a number of concerns for counties.  It would create a process by which a county would be 

penalized for the conduct of its local sheriff, an independently elected office over which the county has 

no  supervision  or  control.  In  addition,  the  bill  as  drafted  presents  some  ambiguity  as  to  whether  a 

county could be deprived of critical school construction dollars if a city or municipal police department 

located within the county is found to have violated the state’s immigration laws.  

On  the  other  hand,  the  Senate  never  took  up  several  bills  the  House  sent  to  that  chamber.  A  bill 

requiring tests for certain contaminants in drinking and recreational water, H1074 (Schools/CC Facilities 

– Test Water  for  Lead),  appeared  late  in  session.  It would have  required public  schools  and  childcare 

facilities built before 1987 to test drinking water for lead and, depending on the results, take subsequent 

remedial  action.  In  response  to  the  death  of  a  visitor  to  a  whitewater  park  from  a  rare  amoebic 

11.C.a

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

in
al

re
p

o
rt

20
16

_2
01

60
70

81
40

84
97

15
6 

 (
13

19
 :

 N
C

A
C

C
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
20

16
 S

h
o

rt
 S

es
si

o
n

)



4 
 

infection,  the  House  amended  the  bill  to  include  regulation  of  health  and  safety  at water  recreation 

attractions and to require a legislative study of health requirements for such parks. 

S778  (Performance  Guarantees/Subdivision  Streets)  was  in  response  to  a  law  passed  last  year 

prohibiting counties from requiring bonds for maintenance of subdivision roads until they become part 

of  the  state  highway  system.  The  legislation  would  have  established  such  authority,  though  it  was 

drafted  to  give  great  discretion  to  the  developer.  It  also would  have  changed  how  improvements  to 

roads around schools are determined and shifted most of the cost to the Dept. of Transportation. The 

Senate had concerns about how much the legislation would cost DOT. 

Other bills passed by the House yet largely ignored by the Senate include: 

 S1047 (Welfare Reform/Food and Nutrition Benefits), the bill requiring the NC Education Lottery 

to share names of winners over a certain dollar amount with  the Dept. of Health and Human 

Services  to  cross‐check  those names with  those  receiving  FNS benefits, with  the possible  end 

result being disqualification for receipt of benefits; 

 S29 (County Eugenics Compensation Authority), which would authorize counties to compensate 

individuals sterilized under individual county eugenics programs. 

The  two  chambers  could  not  agree on  S371  (LME/MCO Claims  Reporting/Mental Health Amends),  or 

regulatory reform legislation, both of which are covered in more detail elsewhere in this report. Efforts 

to  revive  S554  (School  Building  Leases)  continued  up  to  the  last  minute.  This  legislation  would  give 

school  boards  greater  flexibility  to  enter  into  operating  leases  with  private  developers  for  school 

buildings, and creates a financing structure where operational savings from school consolidation may be 

used for capital expenses. Concerns about the financing policy,  the 40‐year allowable debt repayment 

timeframe,  and  the  commitment  of  future  legislatures  to  appropriate  operational  funding  for  capital 

uses  delayed movement  of  the  bill  in  the  House.  A  final  attempt  to  add  a modified  version  to  a  bill 

regarding background checks for teachers failed, and possibly caused the ultimate failure of the bill to 

which it was attached. Finally, S846 (Change the LOST Adjustment Factor) never moved in the Senate. 

While  its provision  to  repeal  the $17.6 million  that was part of  the  sales  tax distribution  compromise 

from last session was included in the state budget, the attempt to change the sales tax adjustment rate 

factor  from county‐specific  rates to rates tied to a county’s economic tier designation was not part of 

any final legislation. 

OMNIBUS REGULATORY REFORM LEGISLATION STALLS AT THE END OF SESSION 

The  legislature  attempted  to  tackle  regulatory  reform  this  session  through  three  separate  pieces  of 

legislation. The House passed S303 (Regulatory Reform Act of 2016) while the Senate moved two bills 

through their chamber: H593 (Amend Environmental and Other Laws) and H169 (Regulatory Reduction 

Act of 2016). While conferees worked until  the  last hours of  session  to combine  the  three bills  into a 

single  omnibus  regulatory  reform  act,  in  the  end,  the  General  Assembly  could  not  agree  to  a  final 

version and did not pass a regulatory reform bill  for the first time in a number of sessions. H169 later 

passed  both  chambers  as  an  unrelated  bill  dealing  with  state  claims  for  wrongful  discharge.  The 

11.C.a

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

in
al

re
p

o
rt

20
16

_2
01

60
70

81
40

84
97

15
6 

 (
13

19
 :

 N
C

A
C

C
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
20

16
 S

h
o

rt
 S

es
si

o
n

)



5 
 

following provisions of note to counties appeared in the different versions of reg reform throughout this 

short session. 

 In  the  House’s  original  changes  to  S303,  the  bill  set  a  three‐year  statute  of  limitations  on 

enforcing certain  land use violations  that can be seen  from a public  right of way. The bill was 

later  amended  to  set  a  three‐year  statute  of  limitations  on  violations  that  are  known  by  the 

county government, have been reported to the county or are part of the public record. It would 

set  a  six‐year  statute  of  limitations  on  violations  that  can  be  seen  by  the  public  and  are  not 

hazardous  to  public  health  or  safety.  NCACC  worked  to  oppose  this  provision  throughout 

session. 

 S303 also would have exempted subdivision ordinances from applying in certain cases including 

a five‐acre lot divided up to three times. Thanks to efforts by our counties contacting legislators, 

the bill was amended to limit this provision to once every 10 years while still requiring certain 

zoning, ingress and egress regulations to be met. 

 The Senate amended H169 to repeal the state’s electronics recycling program while also lifting 

the ban on landfilling electronics. This issue arose from an interim report and recommendations 

by  the  Department  of  Environmental  Quality;  however,  the  House  never  included  it  in  its 

regulatory reform legislation. 

 H169  also  repealed  yard  waste  permitting  requirements  while  allowing  counties  to  continue 

regulating the collection, storage and disposal of yard waste. 

 H593,  the  Senate’s  second  regulatory  bill,  contained  a  section  allowing  life‐of‐site  franchise 

agreements for landfills with franchises in place prior to Oct. 1, 2015. These would only execute 

if all parties,  including the local government, agreed to the life‐of‐site extension. Furthermore, 

this would have clarified that life‐of‐site franchises could not extend beyond 60 years. 

 H593  would  also  allow  a  county  to  satisfy  accessibility  requirements  for  public  records  by 

making records or databases available online  in downloadable format. Counties that also offer 

hard copies of documents may charge fees to a requester for the cost of providing those copies. 

While an omnibus regulatory reform bill did not pass this session, some individual bills with significant 

impacts to county regulatory authority did gain traction toward the end of session. In particular, H483 

(Land‐Use  Regulatory  Changes)  began  moving  late  in  session  with  changes  in  the  Senate.  The  bill 

ultimately passed the House and Senate on the last day of session but, due to efforts by our counties, 

the negative impact was mitigated substantially. 

The original version of the bill made complex changes to land‐use regulatory statutes. These would have 

incentivized  litigation  against  counties,  constrained  county  authority  to  apply  land‐use  changes  to 

multiphase developments, and shifted performance guarantee decisions  to developers  limiting county 

ability  to  recover  costs  for  unsafe  infrastructure.  The  version  of  H483  that  ultimately  passed  only 

addressed multiphase developments  in one provision, which  allowed  certain  developments  to  lock  in 

existing  land‐use  regulations  for  seven  years.  H483  was  presented  to  the  Governor  on  July  1.  We 

appreciate all the work our counties did in contacting legislators to address concerns with early drafts of 

this bill.  

11.C.a

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

in
al

re
p

o
rt

20
16

_2
01

60
70

81
40

84
97

15
6 

 (
13

19
 :

 N
C

A
C

C
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
20

16
 S

h
o

rt
 S

es
si

o
n

)



6 
 

While  H483  passed  with  significant  improvements  thanks  to  county  efforts,  the  House  rolled  out 

changes to S326 (Local Gov’ts/Blds/Structures/Inspection) in the Rules committee in the last week. This 

bill  limits  the  number  of  times  and  areas  where  a  local  government  can  use  periodic  inspections  to 

review  possible  violations  at  homes  and  apartments,  while  also  limiting  the  authority  of  counties  to 

register and track repeat violators, and recover fees from repeat violators. While the practical impact to 

counties  is  unclear,  NCACC  heard  concerns  from  a  few  members  and  worked  to  modify  the  bill. 

Ultimately the House passed the bill and the Senate concurred with the House’s changes on the final day 

of session.  

H2 CHANGES GENERATE MUCH DEBATE BUT LIMITED OUTCOME 

Throughout the session, speculation and rumors swirled as to what, if any, action the legislature would 

take to address concerns regarding the recently passed H2 (Public Facilities & Security Act). H2, passed 

during  a  special  session  in  March,  prohibits  local  governments  from  enacting  regulations  that  ban 

discrimination.  Instead, the bill creates a statewide  law that bans discrimination on the basis of "race, 

religion, color, national origin or biological sex," which  is defined as the sex stated on a person’s birth 

certificate. The law does not include sexual orientation and gender identity as categories protected from 

discrimination  and  directs  all  public  schools,  college  campuses  and  government  agencies  to  require 

bathrooms or locker rooms to be designated for use only by people based on their biological sex.  

H2  also  restricts  counties  and  cities  from  regulating  employment  practices,  i.e.  counties  and  cities 

cannot require contractors to abide by regulations or controls on employment contracts as a condition 

of bidding for work. In addition, the bill eliminates causes of action for workplace discrimination in state 

court.    

On  the  final  day  of  the  session,  the  House  and  Senate  approved  a  bill  to  undo  the  provision  in  H2 

regarding workplace discrimination suits. H169 Restore State Claim for Wrongful Discharge restores the 

right of workers to bring a claim in state court for unlawful employment discrimination. However, the 

bill shortens the time for filing such a claim from three years to one year. H169 passed the House by a 

vote  of  85‐15,  and  the  Senate  by  a  vote  of  27‐14.  The  bill  has  been  sent  to  the  Governor  for  his 

consideration.  

OTHER BILLS OF INTEREST TO COUNTIES  

Following an interim report on Medicaid application processing timeliness from the legislative Program 

Evaluation Division, the House and Senate introduced companion bills H1087/S841 (Medicaid Eligibility 

Timeliness/Funds)  setting  up  a  multi‐step  system  for  addressing  timeliness  including  the  possible 

takeover  of  processing  similar  to  the  current  framework  for  child  welfare  services.  This  system  was 

ultimately  passed  in  the  budget.  If  a  County  DSS  has  consistent  issues  meeting  Medicaid  timeliness 

requirements,  the  first  step  is  a  12‐18 month  joint  corrective  action  plan  that would  include  specific 

responsibilities  and  actions  for  DHHS  and  the  county.  If  a  county  does  not meet  targets  in  the  plan, 

following a 90‐day notice, DHHS will take over processing until timeliness improves. A county can appeal 

this takeover determination to the Office of Administrative Hearings. 

11.C.a

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

in
al

re
p

o
rt

20
16

_2
01

60
70

81
40

84
97

15
6 

 (
13

19
 :

 N
C

A
C

C
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
20

16
 S

h
o

rt
 S

es
si

o
n

)



7 
 

As the state transitions toward a new model for physical and behavioral health service delivery through 

Medicaid reform and LME/MCO reorganization, the House and Senate released a conference report on 

S371  (LME/MCO Claims  Reporting/Mental Health Amends)  in  the  last  days  of  session.  This  bill would 

have authorized the secretary of DHHS to direct mergers of LME/MCOs and sets out minimum criteria 

for  the  secretary when  considering  possible  consolidations  including  solvency,  population  served  and 

financial  performance.  The  bill  makes  other  changes  to  LME/MCO  board  governance  but  does  not 

include a provision limiting county LME/MCO disengagement until the Secretary of Health and Human 

Services  adopts  procedural  rules.  The  Senate  approved  the  conference  report  in  the  last  hours  of 

session; however, it was never voted on in the House.  

As counties and the state work to tackle behavioral health issues including the opioid abuse epidemic, 

the  General  Assembly  considered  legislation  lowering  barriers  to  obtaining  lifesaving  overdose 

prevention  drugs.  S734  (Statewide  Standing  Order/Opioid  Antagonist)  authorizes  the  State  Health 

Director  to prescribe an opioid overdose  inhibitor by a statewide standing order. The bill became  law 

late in the session with the Governor’s signature following a unanimous vote in the House and Senate. 

This  legislation makes  it easier for a person to obtain naloxone hydrochloride from a pharmacy if they 

believe someone may be at risk of an overdose. Naloxone  is a drug that blocks the effects of opioids, 

preventing overdoses and saving lives. According to some reports, this drug has helped save 3,300 North 

Carolinians from dying due to opioid overdose.  

The House and Senate unanimously agreed to a bill making  it unlawful  to transfer custody of a minor 

child  or  advertise  the  custody  transfer  of  a minor  child  outside  of  current  adoption processes,  foster 

care  systems,  legal  custody  transfers  and  relative  care  processes.  H424  (Prohibit  Unlawful  Custody 

Transfer of Child) was introduced in a Senate committee in the last week of session before passing the 

Senate  50‐0  and  the  House  109‐0.  Unlawful  custody  transfer  of  a  child  would  be  a  Class  A1 

misdemeanor unless the transfer results in serious physical injury to the child, which would be a Class G 

felony. The bill also directs DHHS to develop a more comprehensive program to help families at risk of 

adoption dissolutions.  

H1035 (LGC/Training for Local Gov't Finance Officers), authorizes the Local Government Commission to 

require local finance officers and any local employee with finance duties to attend formal training if the 

commission determines a need, particularly if the local government has received a deficiency letter from 

the commission. 

S575 (NC/SC Original Boundary Confirmation), which closely mirrors legislation passed in South Carolina 

earlier this year, reestablishes the original border between the Carolinas that has become indistinct over 

time as  landmarks have shifted or disappeared. A  few residents who have been determined to  live  in 

different states will have to change their driver licenses and will now pay taxes in their “new” state of 

residence. Students may choose to stay in schools they currently attend and will be eligible for in‐state 

tuition in their previous state of residence for ten years. 

S667 (Elections Omnibus Revisions) makes changes to various elections laws and requires the Attorney 

General  to  represent  local  governments  whenever  the  validity  or  constitutionality  of  local  acts  is 

challenged and to represent  the state  in most  litigation. Among other elections changes, S667 adjusts 

11.C.a

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

in
al

re
p

o
rt

20
16

_2
01

60
70

81
40

84
97

15
6 

 (
13

19
 :

 N
C

A
C

C
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
20

16
 S

h
o

rt
 S

es
si

o
n

)



8 
 

the  time requirements  for canvassing after elections, directs  the order of candidates on the ballot  for 

Court  of  Appeals,  adjusts  voting  tabulation  districts  in  preparation  for  the  2020  census,  sets  uniform 

standards for precinct boundaries, requires maintenance of voting data by precinct instead of tabulation 

district, and directs a legislative study of municipal elections in even‐numbered years. 

H992  (Amend  Industrial  Hemp Program)  adds  requirements  to  the  hemp program established by  the 

legislature last year, achieving an NCACC goal. It clarifies the powers and duties of the Industrial Hemp 

Commission, grants rulemaking authority to the commission, and requires the industrial hemp research 

program  to  be  managed  and  coordinated  by  state  land  grant  universities.  It  also  sets  specific 

responsibilities  of  licensees  and  authorizes  research  purposes  for  the  industrial  hemp  program  and 

creates civil and criminal penalties for various violations of the program. 

The General Assembly approved S865 (State Health Plan/Admin Changes/Local Govts) that increases the 

number of local governments that may participate in the State Health Plan. It raises the enrollment cap 

on  local  government  employees  and  dependents  from  10,000  to  16,000.  The  bill  also  prohibits 

participating  local  governments  from  charging more  for  employee  and  dependent  coverage  than  the 

Plan allows.  

H550  (Raleigh  Apodaca  Service  Dog  Retirement  Act) would  allow  cities  and  counties  to  turn  publicly 

owned service animals like police dogs over to their handlers once the animals have reached retirement 

age. The bill  extends  the provisions  found  in a number of  local bills across  the state and passed both 

chambers  unanimously.  Previously,  local  governments  would  be  required  to  auction‐off  animals  as 

surplus. H550 was named for Rules Chair Tom Apodaca’s bulldog, Raleigh, who died in September.  

The  General  Assembly  passed  the  annual  bill  addressing  agricultural  regulations  approving  S770  (NC 

Farm Act of 2016) in the last two days. Part of the bill clarifies the current permit exemption for some 

small  construction projects  costing  less  than $15,000.  This  change  lists  the  type of  small  construction 

projects to include fixing windows, doors, railings and decking as well as replacing some plumbing and 

electrical equipment, and fixtures.  It exempts horticulture operations from sedimentation control  laws 

and allows well contractors to install pipes and electrical wiring in limited circumstances, and would add 

notification responsibilities for local health departments. 

Two provisions with possible  financial  impacts  to  counties were not  included  in  the  final  version. The 

original version of  the bill decreased  the  farm  income threshold  from $10,000 per year  to $5,000 per 

year  to  qualify  for  the  farm  equipment  sales  tax  exemption.  The  bill  also  contained  a  provision 

expanding  when  deferred  taxes  are  waived  or  pro‐rated  for  gifts  of  PUV  property  for  preservation 

purposes  —  this  provision  was  removed  from  S770  but  later  became  law  in  H533  (Modify  PUV 

Exceptions to Disqualification). 

Two bills, (S811) Lottery Funds for School Construction & S728 (Lottery – JLOC Recommendations), were 

introduced in the Senate and would have addressed the issue of county school construction needs. The 

Department of Public  Instruction  conducted a  facility needs  survey during  the  interim and  found  that 

LEAs will need $8 billion over the next five years and $13.4 billion over the next 10 years to build new 

schools  and  to  renovate  or  expand  existing  schools.  The  Department  further  concluded  that  local 

11.C.a

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

in
al

re
p

o
rt

20
16

_2
01

60
70

81
40

84
97

15
6 

 (
13

19
 :

 N
C

A
C

C
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
20

16
 S

h
o

rt
 S

es
si

o
n

)



9 
 

funding is inadequate to meet these needs, and that additional state funding will be needed to fulfill the 

“highest facility needs in relation to the capacity to raise revenue.”  

S811 would create a Critical Public School Building Needs Fund to provide grant assistance to counties 

for  school  construction  needs  based  on  the  counties’  ability  to  generate  revenue  through  sales  and 

property  taxes.  The  bill  would  appropriate  $25 million  in  lottery  revenues  to  the  critical  needs  fund, 

which would be in addition to the $100 million appropriated to the Public School Building Capital Fund. 

The bill would have provided for an additional $25 million to the critical needs fund if S728 passed.  

S728  and  House  companion  H1038 were  referred  out  of  the  Joint  Lottery  Oversight  Committee  and 

would make two substantial changes to the lottery statutes. The bill would increase the cap on lottery 

advertising  expenses  from  1%  to  2%, which  the N.C.  Education  Lottery  estimates would  generate  an 

additional $48.4 million in lottery revenues. The bill would also direct all unclaimed prize moneys to be 

included  in  the  amount  appropriated  for  "education‐related  purposes"  each  year.  Currently,  50%  of 

unclaimed prize monies are used to enhance prizes. 

Neither  proposal  received  a  hearing;  however,  the  final  budget  includes  a  provision  directing  the 

Program Evaluation Division  to  contract  for  an  independent  assessment  of  school  construction needs 

and  to  determine  which  LEAs  have  the  highest  facility  needs  in  relation  to  their  capacity  to  raise 

revenue.  

H1080  (Achievement  School  District)  creates  a  state‐managed  school  administrative  unit  designed  to 

boost low‐performing schools from across the state. The bill establishes an Achievement School District 

(ASD) as a pilot program authorizing the State Board of Education (SBE) to select private charter school 

companies  to  take  over  the  administration  of  qualifying  elementary  schools.  Under  the  bill,  the  SBE 

must select and enter  into a  five‐year contract with an achievement school operator, but may extend 

the contract for three years if certain performance criteria are met.  

H1080  states  that  once  the  local  school  board  has  been  notified  that  one  of  its  schools  has  been 

selected  for  transfer  to  the  ASD,  it  can  take  one  of  two  actions.  The  board  can:  (1)  consent  to  the 

transfer, or (2) close the school. The bill further states that the LEA would transfer the per‐pupil share of 

local current expense funds to the achievement school and would remain responsible  for  the school’s 

capital and transportation needs. The state would allocate funds to the school in an amount equal to the 

average per pupil share of the LEA’s ADM allotment plus amounts for disability and English proficiency.   

An  additional  pilot  program  provided  for  under  the  bill  would  allow  a  local  school  board  to  create 

“innovation zones” comprised of three struggling schools within the LEA. These innovation zones would 

be given exemptions from state regulations similar to those afforded to public charter schools.  

H972  (Law  Enforcement  Recordings/No  Public  Record)  governs  the  disclosure  of  audio  and  video 

recordings  captured  by  body  cameras,  dashboard  cameras  or  other  recording  devices  used  by  law 

enforcement officers while performing their duties. The bill exempts these recordings from the state’s 

public records laws.    

11.C.a

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

in
al

re
p

o
rt

20
16

_2
01

60
70

81
40

84
97

15
6 

 (
13

19
 :

 N
C

A
C

C
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
20

16
 S

h
o

rt
 S

es
si

o
n

)



10 
 

The  bill  provides  that  the  head  of  the  law  enforcement  agency  having  custody  of  a  recording  may 

release it only to a person or personal representative of one whose image or voice is in the recording. 

The custodial agency may consider a number of factors in determining whether to release the recording, 

such as whether it contains otherwise confidential information or would reveal information of a highly 

sensitive  personal  nature.  A  decision  denying  disclosure may  be  appealed  to  the  superior  court.  The 

standard of review by the court is whether the custodial agency abused its discretion, and the bill  lists 

several criteria the court must consider in making its decision on whether to release the recording.  

The  bill  was  later  amended  to  include  language  allowing  governmental  and  nongovernmental 

organizations to establish and operate hypodermic syringe and needle exchange programs. The bill sets 

forth the requirements for such a program and provides that a person found to be in possession of new 

or  used  needles,  syringes  or  other  injection  supplies  shall  be  immune  from  prosecution  if  they were 

obtained  from  or  returned  to  a  needle  exchange  program.  H972  passed  both  chambers  following 

spirited and lengthy debates on the issue of public access to law enforcement recordings.  

 

11.C.a

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 f

in
al

re
p

o
rt

20
16

_2
01

60
70

81
40

84
97

15
6 

 (
13

19
 :

 N
C

A
C

C
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
20

16
 S

h
o

rt
 S

es
si

o
n

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.D 

Meeting Date:   July 18, 2016 

 

Submitted By: Angela Wooten, Clerk to the Board 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Angela Wooten 

 
Item Title   Resolution Opposing House Bill 763: an Act To protect 

North Carolina's Military Foot Print 

 

Attachments: Microsoft Outlook - Memo Style (PDF) 

HB 763 Resolution.pdf (PDF) 

 

Summary: 

 

Recommendation: 

11.D

Packet Pg. 123



1

Angela Wooten

From: Katie Mosher <katie.mosher@co.beaufort.nc.us>

Sent: Tuesday, July 12, 2016 11:15 AM

To: tory.frink@alamance-nc.com; jstarnes@alexandercountync.gov; alleadmin@skybest.com;

bhuntley@co.anson.nc.us; aclark@ashecountygov.com; 

barbara.mccoy@ashecountygov.com; avery.clerk@ncmail.net; Sarah Tinkham; 

medwards@bladenco.org; margie.stephenson@brunswic

Subject: Please Forward Resolution

Attachments: HB 763 Resolution.pdf

Hello Everyone!

At our Board of Commissioners meeting last night (July 11, 2016) the Beaufort County Board of Commissioners approved 
the attached resolution opposing HB 763. They have asked that it be forwarded to all other counties. Please forward a 
copy to your Commissioners and Managers. Thank you, 

Katie M. Mosher, CMC, NCCCC
Clerk to the Board, Beaufort County
Administrative Assistant to the County Manager
252-946-0079, Ext. 110
Katie.Mosher@co.beaufort.nc.us

E-mail correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed 
to third parties.

11.D.a

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ic
ro

so
ft

 O
u

tl
o

o
k 

- 
M

em
o

 S
ty

le
  (

13
20

 :
 B

ea
u

fo
rt

 C
o

u
n

ty
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

)



11.D.b

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

B
 7

63
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

.p
d

f 
 (

13
20

 :
 B

ea
u

fo
rt

 C
o

u
n

ty
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

)



11.D.b

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

B
 7

63
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

.p
d

f 
 (

13
20

 :
 B

ea
u

fo
rt

 C
o

u
n

ty
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

)


	Agenda Packet
	Welcome & Call to Order
	Roll Call

	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	Commissioner Tom White

	1. Public Comments
	2. Consideration of Agenda
	3. Presentations
	4. Old Business
	A. 1309 : Camden Community Park Lighting Project Bids
	Printout: 1309 : Camden Community Park Lighting Project Bids
	a. 2016 CCP Lighting project bids (Albritton, Torrence & Techline)


	5. Public Hearings
	A. 1310 : Public Hearing - Ordinance No. 2016-06-03 Proposed Amendments to Code of Ordinances
	Printout: 1310 : Public Hearing - Ordinance No. 2016-06-03 Proposed Amendments to Code of Ordinances
	a. Ordinance 2016-06-03 Proposed Amendments

	B. 1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance 2016-06-02 Rezoning Application Lindsey W. Hewitt
	Printout: 1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance 2016-06-02 Rezoning Application Lindsey W. Hewitt
	a. Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt


	6. New Business
	A. 1315 : Discussion Mixed Beverage Election
	Printout: 1315 : Discussion Mixed Beverage Election
	a. CEDC
	b. NCGS  Related to Sale of Mixed Drinks


	7. Board Appointments
	A. 1308 : Parks and Recreation Advisory Board
	Printout: 1308 : Parks and Recreation Advisory Board
	a. Parks n Rec Members
	b. Parks_Vol_Ward
	c. Parks_Vol_Friend
	d. Parks n Rec BYLAWS

	B. 1311 : Tourism Development Authority
	Printout: 1311 : Tourism Development Authority
	a. TDA  Members
	b. TDA_Vol_Cherrix
	c. Resolution No, 2004-10-02.pdf

	C. 1312 : Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee
	Printout: 1312 : Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee
	a. cac
	b. cac members
	c. CAMDEN COUNTY CAC BY-LAWS
	d. NC GS 131D-30-32


	8. Consent Agenda
	A. 1321 : Draft Minutes - June 6, 2016
	Printout: 1321 : Draft Minutes - June 6, 2016

	B. 1322 : Draft Minutes - June 13, 2016
	Printout: 1322 : Draft Minutes - June 13, 2016

	C. 1323 : Draft Minutes - June 20, 2016
	Printout: 1323 : Draft Minutes - June 20, 2016

	D. 1324 : Draft Minutes - July 5, 2016
	Printout: 1324 : Draft Minutes - July 5, 2016

	E. 1304 : Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 1304 : Refunds Over $100.00
	a. ca5e248f-e07e-469c-999b-1b907273ce79.pdf
	b. Refunds over 100
	c. Refunds over 100 -2

	F. 1307 : Refunds Over $100.00
	Printout: 1307 : Refunds Over $100.00
	a. 20160711081246000.pdf

	G. 1305 : DMV Monthly Report
	Printout: 1305 : DMV Monthly Report
	a. 20160708082126243.pdf

	H. 1316 : Tax Collection Report - June
	Printout: 1316 : Tax Collection Report - June
	a. Tax Collection Report - June

	I. 1317 : Volunteer Applications
	Printout: 1317 : Volunteer Applications
	a. Trillium_Vol_McLain
	b. Senior_Vol_McLain


	9. Commissioners' Report
	10. County Manager's Report
	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors Meeting
	Reconvene Commissioners' Meeting
	11. Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies
	A. 1314 : 2016-2017 Final State Budget Summary
	Printout: 1314 : 2016-2017 Final State Budget Summary
	a. finalbudgetreport

	B. 1318 : Register of Deeds Monthly Report
	Printout: 1318 : Register of Deeds Monthly Report
	a. RoD Monthly Report - June 2016

	C. 1319 : NCACC Review of 2016 Short Session
	Printout: 1319 : NCACC Review of 2016 Short Session
	a. finalreport2016_201607081408497156

	D. 1320 : Beaufort County Resolution
	Printout: 1320 : Beaufort County Resolution
	a. Microsoft Outlook - Memo Style
	b. HB 763 Resolution.pdf


	12. Other Matters
	13. Adjourn

	Appendix
	4.A · 1309 : Camden Community Park Lighting Project Bids
	4.A.a · 2016 CCP Lighting project bids (Albritton, Torrence & Techline)

	5.A · 1310 : Public Hearing - Ordinance No. 2016-06-03 Proposed Amendments to Code of Ordinances
	5.A.a · Ordinance 2016-06-03 Proposed Amendments

	5.B · 1313 : Public Hearing - Ordinance 2016-06-02 Rezoning Application Lindsey W. Hewitt
	5.B.a · Ordinance 2016-06-02 UDO 2016-05-05 Rezoning Hewitt

	6.A · 1315 : Discussion Mixed Beverage Election
	6.A.a · CEDC
	6.A.b · NCGS  Related to Sale of Mixed Drinks

	7.A · 1308 : Parks and Recreation Advisory Board
	7.A.a · Parks n Rec Members
	7.A.b · Parks_Vol_Ward
	7.A.c · Parks_Vol_Friend
	7.A.d · Parks n Rec BYLAWS

	7.B · 1311 : Tourism Development Authority
	7.B.a · TDA  Members
	7.B.b · TDA_Vol_Cherrix
	7.B.c · Resolution No, 2004-10-02.pdf

	7.C · 1312 : Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee
	7.C.a · cac
	7.C.b · cac members
	7.C.c · CAMDEN COUNTY CAC BY-LAWS
	7.C.d · NC GS 131D-30-32

	8.A · 1321 : Draft Minutes - June 6, 2016
	8.B · 1322 : Draft Minutes - June 13, 2016
	8.C · 1323 : Draft Minutes - June 20, 2016
	8.D · 1324 : Draft Minutes - July 5, 2016
	8.E · 1304 : Refunds Over $100.00
	8.E.a · ca5e248f-e07e-469c-999b-1b907273ce79.pdf
	8.E.b · Refunds over 100
	8.E.c · Refunds over 100 -2

	8.F · 1307 : Refunds Over $100.00
	8.F.a · 20160711081246000.pdf

	8.G · 1305 : DMV Monthly Report
	8.G.a · 20160708082126243.pdf

	8.H · 1316 : Tax Collection Report - June
	8.H.a · Tax Collection Report - June

	8.I · 1317 : Volunteer Applications
	8.I.a · Trillium_Vol_McLain
	8.I.b · Senior_Vol_McLain

	11.A · 1314 : 2016-2017 Final State Budget Summary
	11.A.a · finalbudgetreport

	11.B · 1318 : Register of Deeds Monthly Report
	11.B.a · RoD Monthly Report - June 2016

	11.C · 1319 : NCACC Review of 2016 Short Session
	11.C.a · finalreport2016_201607081408497156

	11.D · 1320 : Beaufort County Resolution
	11.D.a · Microsoft Outlook - Memo Style
	11.D.b · HB 763 Resolution.pdf



